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The past financial year proved to be a tough year for the economy and hence for the
National Treasury. After a long period of sustained economic expansion, the economy
began to slow down towards the end of 2007, providing the backdrop for what has been
a turbulent past six months characterised by a slowing global economy, rising food and
oil prices and the advent of load shedding.

During this period the National Treasury focused on strengthening the protective cushion
around the economy, mainly by continuing to manage the fiscus in a prudent fashion and
strengthening the institutions that monitor financial market risks. The Treasury has also
taken a more pro-active stance in communicating with the public about these economic
risks and what policy instruments are to be used to mitigate against these risks. 

In 2007/08, a number of significant economic policy initiatives were either underway or
were close to completion. Together with the Presidency, the Treasury
engaged extensively with both local and foreign academics to
review the state of the economy and generate ideas about how
growth and employment could be increased. The report
launched by the Commission on Growth and Development,
the assessment conducted by the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development (OECD) this year, have
contributed to a considerable body of research to guide the
economic discourse in South Africa. 

The National Treasury continued to play its role in
steering public spending towards
consistently and sustainably improving
the quality of live of our people.
Extensive planning and coordination at
the national, provincial and local
sphere of government was informed
by political priorities, the need for
long-term investments in capacity
building and continued to support the
implementation of key government
programmes. Providing advice to
the Minister’s Committee on the
Budget, conducting interdepart-
mental budgetary and policy

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S 
OVERVIEW

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
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consultation, monitoring fiscal and public expenditure trends and advising the Minister
of Finance are some of the coordination activity streams driven by the National Treasury
in this regard. These systems are constantly being improved in the Treasury and the last
year was no exception. The financial year concluded with the delivery of a national
budget that was well received by domestic and international stakeholders.  

Efforts to strengthen the banking environment while continuing to increase access to
financial services remained key. During the second half of 2007 the Banks Amendment
Act was promulgated into law, paving the way for the introduction of the Basel II Capital
Accord in South Africa from 1 January 2008. 

The adoption was timely in light of subsequent financial market instability in several
developed countries, and will go a long way in ensuring that our banks apply advanced
risk management tools to further enhance their stability. To improve access to finance and
banking development, the Cooperative Banks Act was passed by Parliament and signed
into law in February 2008. Implementation of the Act has begun with preparations for the
oversight board, envisaged to assist in building capacity in financial services
cooperatives. 

With regard to assets and liability management, the debt management strategy has
evolved from exclusively financing the borrowing requirement to offering broader
support for government’s macro-economic objectives. Debt servicing cost as a
percentage of GDP continued to decline, reaching 2.6 per cent of GDP in 2007/08. 

State-owned entities (SOEs) are viewed as pivotal in reducing the cost of doing business
and promoting economic growth and development in South Africa. Financial stability,
efficiency, performance and governance of SOEs are paramount to achieving these
outcomes and the National Treasury is playing its part through several initiatives. The
recommendations of the review of Development Finance Institutions (DFI’s) were
completed and have been approved by Cabinet,  and implementation will commence
shortly.

On the international front, South Africa played an instrumental role in negotiations with
donor countries to ensure that their commitments to support low-income countries were
considerably increased. South Africa relinquished the chair of the G20 forum as
scheduled at the end of 2007. Our stewardship of these engagements will be remembered
as successful, both in terms of substance and administration. South Africa continues to
play a strong role in promoting regional integration through the Southern African
Development Community (SADC). Government’s adoption of the Finance and
Investment Protocol by SADC is being tabled for approval in Parliament.

The National Treasury places a high priority on being an employer of choice and for the
period under review has managed to attract highly skilled individuals who revel in the
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highly stimulating and challenging conditions they find in this organisation. This however
does not detract from the tight labour market and the National Treasury will continue to
strive towards attracting and retaining well trained and committed individuals to further
complement our formidable team.

L Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
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TTHHEE  MMIINNIISSTTRRYY

The year 2007 marks the 11th year in which Minister Trevor Manuel has served as the
Minister of Finance. He has been instrumental in creating a stable and predictable
financial environment for domestic and international investors, rendering South Africa an
attractive investment destination and place to conduct economic activity.

He has stayed the course to achieve macro-economic stability and has kept the needs of
South Africans at the forefront of the economic agenda. This has sometimes necessitated
taking tough decisions in the face of criticism, particularly during periods of dramatic but
short-lived economic events. In addition to taking tough decisions, the Minister has also
made bold choices to ensure that our growth trajectory and redistributive stance promises
continued hope to all South Africans living in poverty.

For the period under review Deputy Minister Jabu Moleketi has supported Minister
Manuel in a manner that has rendered their leadership effective and strategically sound.
The political leadership is enhanced by a solid National Treasury team led by the
Director-General, Lesetja Kganyago.

The National Treasury has remained successful as an
organisation of highly competent and dedicated
people, rising to meet ever more complicated
challenges of a dynamic environment. The
Ministry itself is a highly pressured
environment, with a core team that has to deal
with a relentless pace to ensure that the
operational needs of the Minister and Deputy
Minister are met. 

Both Minister Manuel and Deputy Minister
Moleketi are actively engaged in several
international forums to advance the agenda of South
Africans, and Africans, in the international arena.
South Africa successfully concluded the chairing of the
G20 forum during the period under review. Through
the African Peer Review Mechanism and under
the auspices of NEPAD, South Africa has
established its position with
development partners to confront
those regional challenges that
must be addressed in the near
future. 

The Ministry continues to
provide executive oversight to
the National Treasury, which
constantly sets very ambitious
performance targets. The

Trevor A Manuel, MP
Minister of Finance
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Ministry’s interaction with the National Treasury is channeled through Lesetja
Kganyago, the Director-General, and his management structures. Mr Kganyago’s
leadership style has been exemplary, and under his guidance, the continued growth in
stature of the Department has been well managed and continued to provide the Ministry
with technical advice on a wide range of complex policy issues. 
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International visits undertaken by the Minister of Finance
during the 2007/08 financial year

01-03  April 2007 : Visit to Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend the UNECA
Annual Meeting of Ministers of the Economy, Finance and
Planning

06 -17 April 2007 : Visit to  New York, Boston and Washington D.C., USA, to
attend workshops of the Commission on Growth and
Development, to deliver a lecture at Tufts and to attend the
Spring meetings of the IMF and World Bank

20 April 2007 : Visit to Swaziland to attend a SACU Council Meeting

12- 20 May 2007 : Visit to Shanghai, China to attend Annual Meetings of the
African Development Bank, and to Potsdam, Germany to
attend a G8 Outreach event

27 July 2007 : Visit to Maputo, Mozambique for a SADC Finance
Ministers’ meeting

13-14 August 2007 : Visit to Lusaka, Zambia to attend a SADC Council of
Ministers’ meeting

20 August 2007 : Visit to Maputo, Mozambique to attend IMF 2nd African 
Consultative Group on Quotas, Voice and Representation

22 – 30 September 2007 : Visit to New Haven and New York to attend workshops of
the Commission on Growth and Development, and to
address a meeting of the Clinton Global Initiative

12 – 23 October 2007 : Visit to Washington D.C, USA, to attend the Annual
Meetings of the IMF and World Bank

06 - 07 November 2007 : Visit to Lusaka, Zambia to attend a SADC Council of
Ministers’ Meeting

24 – 28 January 2008 : Visit to Davos, Switzerland, to attend the Annual Meetings
of the World Economic Forum

14 – 16 February 2008 : Visit to Geneva, Switzerland, to address a meeting of the
Geneva Progressive Forum Leaders’ Group on
Globalisation

19 March –02 April 2008: Visit to New Delhi, India to meet with the Minister of
Finance of India and the Chair of the Planning Commission
and to Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend a Joint Annual

African 
Union Conference of Ministers of the Economy and
Finance, and the UN Economic Commission for Africa
Conference of Finance, Planning and Economic Develop-
ment Ministers
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International visits undertaken by the Deputy Minister of
Finance during the 2007/08 financial year

07 – 15 April 2007 : Visit to Beijing, China leading a South African
Delegation  to hold discussions with the Beijing
Olympics Committee 

08 – 11 May 2007 : Visit to Berlin, Germany accompanying the Deputy
President of South Africa for a working meeting 

06 – 19 July 2007 : Visit to Cuba, Mexico, Spain and Panama
accompanying the Deputy Minister of Foreign 
Affairs to conduct consultations with counterparts 

24 August 2007 : Visit to Gaborone, Botswana to attend the Eastern
and Southern Money Laundering Group AGM 

27 – 28 September 2007 : Visit to Lesotho, Maseru to attend a SACU Council
of Ministers meeting

13 – 19 October 2007 : Visit to Georgetown, Guyana to attend the 
Finance Ministers meeting 

28 January – 1 February 2007 : Visit to Brussels, Belgium to attend the 8th meeting 
of ACP National and Regional Authorising officer

18 – 21 February 2007 : Visit to London as part of a delegation on releasing 
of  Interim results of Eskom and meeting with 
investors 
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VVIISSIIOONN

The National Treasury is the custodian of the nation's financial
resources. We hold ourselves accountable to the nation to
discharge our responsibilities professionally and with

humility, and with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis, our advice and
the execution of our financial management responsibilities.  We aim
to realise the full potential of South Africa's economy and people and
to mobilise the resources of the state, business enterprises and the
wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect. 

MMIISSSSIIOONN  AANNDD  
OOBBJJEECCTTIIVVEESS

The National Treasury aims to promote economic
development, good governance, social progress and rising
living standards through accountable, economic, efficient,

equitable and sustainable management of South Africa's public
finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based
empowerment, progressive realisation of human rights and the
elimination of poverty.  We are responsible for preparing a sound and
sustainable national Budget and an equitable division of resources
among the three spheres of government.

We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to
manage Government's financial assets and liabilities soundly.

We promote transparency and effective financial management.
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VVAALLUUEESS

As custodians of the nation's financial resources, the National
Treasury acknowledges the authority of Parliament through
whom we are accountable to the nation.

We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive
continually to improve the quality, accuracy and reliability of our
service delivery. 

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of
choice, we invest in the education and training of our staff, we
cultivate a learning and consultative environment, we make use of the
best available technological support and we aim to mobilise the full
potential of our people. 

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues we act
transparently and with integrity, showing respect and demonstrating
fairness and objectivity.

In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the South
African public has placed in us.
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND
COMMITMENT

The Development Indicators published by the Presidency in July this year serve as
testimony to the significant improvement in the lives of all South Africans since 1994.
Our government has made great progress in extending basic service, increasing access to
education and health, extending social security, investing in infrastructure and
contributing towards development on our continent. Many of these achievements are
made possible by a growing economy with both investment and employment rising
considerably in the five years to 2007. Indeed, rapid economic growth together with an
effective developmental state are the hallmarks of a pro-poor development strategy. 

Towards the end of 2007, the South African economy started to slow down, mainly due
to a deteriorating international economic environment. The sub-prime crisis in the US
served as a catalyst for the unwinding of a series of excesses in both financial markets and
in  global capital flows. Food and fuel prices have increased globally at a pace not seen
in decades. Fuel continues to be critical for the economy and food prices impact the most
on the world’s poor.  Today, the world economy is in a very different place from where it
was a year ago. 

Simultaneously, our own capacity constraints and inability to increase production to meet
higher demand has led to a rising current account deficit and creeping inflationary
pressures. The electricity outages at the end of the past fiscal year were stark reminders
of these capacity constraints. 

Our response to both global and domestic economic developments is to further strengthen
our anchors in the face of this storm. This implies that government has to contribute
towards higher national savings and economic policy must prioritise job creation and the
promotion of exports. Monetary policy has been tightened to support efforts to bring
down inflation and mitigate against global risks. At the same time, we know that capacity
constraints, from electricity to skills, can only be broken through higher levels of
investment. Our challenge is to find that delicate balance between cushioning the
economy from global risks and investing to raise our potential growth rate. 

A substantial amount of time and resources have been spent on strategic areas of work, in
order to continue to positively impact the lives of all citizens over time. These efforts
include in-depth consideration of the options available to raise our long term growth
prospects, participation in the inter-departmental team tasked to develop the framework
for a contributory social security system and a review of the Development Finance
Institutions; with appreciable advances having been made on each thus far. The economic
implications of climate change will also enjoy a similar strategic priority in due course.
Large infrastructure funding allocations are being directed in support of the financing of
Eskom’s investment programme to ensure that the nation’s energy needs will be met over
the medium term.   The underlying principle that electricity users bear the cost of its
supply remains firm, with capital being financed through retained earnings and debt on
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market-related terms. Government remains committed to the other existing infrastructure
programmes, which will improve living conditions and access to services in general.   We
trust that our international engagements have further elevated the voice of South Africans,
and Africans at large, in various fora. South Africa’s chairing of the G20 was concluded
with successfully conducted ministerial meetings held in Cape Town during November
2007. Regional policy issues largely addressed matters relating to progress towards
MDG’s (Millenium Development Goals) and deepening integration of regional economic
activity through relevant regional institutions such as the African Development Bank and
the African Union. These will continue to feature on our development agenda. After being
the recipient of development assistance from many countries during our own transition,
South Africa is increasingly becoming a donor in its own right, with funding mainly being
channeled through the African Renaissance Fund. Our contributions to peacekeeping
efforts, investment promotion and economic cooperation have also gained impetus.  Our
goals and challenges, with the constraints of our present circumstances, confront all of us
as government, businesses, families, citizens and taxpayers of this economy. It is
important that we remain united in our approach and; that we face the challenges ahead
as a strong and determined collective. We are in this together, as President Mbeki put it
“all hands on deck”, through all our challenges and head towards deeper democracy and
freedom of choice. United in our diversity and with social solidarity, we look forward to
playing our role in building a non-racial, non-sexist and prosperous South Africa.        

Trevor A Manuel, MP
Minister of Finance
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LLEEGGIISSLLAATTIIVVEE  MMAANNDDAATTEE

The National Treasury has a legislative mandate to promote the national Government's
fiscal policy and the coordination of macroeconomic policy; coordinate
intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; manage the budget preparation and
enforce transparency and effective management in respect of revenue and expenditure,
assets and liabilities, public entities and constitutional institutions.

Parliamentary Services

The Minister of Finance as the political principal of the Department regards the active
collaboration with Parliament as vital. Consequently, the National Treasury continued to
have sustained relations during the period under review through interactions with
Parliamentary committees. Chief amongst the committees that the Department works with
is the Portfolio Committee on Finance; other committees include the Select Committee on
Finance, Joint Budget Committee and the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

At the core of maintaining the this relationship is the Parliamentary Services Office,
tasked with ensuring a transparent and cooperative working relationship with Parliament
this office. The Office is also a vehicle through which financial policies and pieces of
legislation are presented to Parliament for consideration and approval.

During the period under review the Parliamentary Services Office maintained a
transparent working relationship through coordinating work processes between policy
makers and public representatives.  Information continued to flow between the Ministry
through Cabinet to Parliament and vice versa. 

Other clients of this office include but are not limited to:

• Members of Parliament;

• Parliamentary Committees;

• Parliamentary Administrative Staff;

• Civil society institutions; and

• Members of the public.

The Parliamentary Services Office also maintains collegial and cooperative relationships
on behalf of the Ministry with political structures as well as offices of the Presiding
Officers and Leader of Government Business.    
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LLEEGGIISSLLAATTIIOONN  EENNAACCTTEEDD

The National Treasury annually tables legislation in  Parliament, which can be 
categorised as follows:

• Legislation conceptualised and prepared in-house

• Legislation prepared by such regulatory bodies as the Financial Services Board and
the South African Reserve Bank, with National Treasury providing policy
direction

• Tax legislation prepared jointly with the South African Revenue Services, with
National Treasury providing policy direction.

The following is a list of legislation tabled in Parliament during the 2007/08 financial 
year to date:

1. Appropriation Act, 2007 (Act No. 7 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Appropriation Bill [B2 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 24 July 2007 
Published in Government Gazette No. 30127 dated 27 July 2007

2. Taxation Laws Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 8 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Taxation Laws Amendment Bill [B18 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 5 August 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30157 dated 8 August 2007

3. Taxation Laws Second Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 9 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Taxation Laws Second Amendment Bill [B19 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 24 July 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30158 dated 8 August 2007

4. Pension Funds Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 11 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Pension Funds Amendment Bill [B11B – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 26 August 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30240 dated 29 August 2007

5. Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act, 2007 (Act No. 12 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Bill [B9B – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 3 September 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30271 dated 7 September 2007

6. Diamond Export Levy (Administration) Act, 2007 (Act No. 14 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Diamond Export Levy (Administration) Bill [B23 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 5 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30557 dated 10 December 2007

7. Diamond Export Levy Act, 2007 (Act No. 15 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Diamond Export Levy Bill [B22 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 2 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30558 dated 10 December 2007
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8. Special Adjustments Appropriation Act (2007/08 Financial Year), 2007 
(Act No. 16 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Special Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B37 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 1 October 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30339 dated 2 October 2007

9. Banks Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 20 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Banks Amendment Bill [B12B – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 12 November 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30474 dated 15 November 2007

10. Adjustments Appropriation Act, 2007 (Act No. 27 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B41 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 7 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30566 dated 12 December 2007

11. Securities Transfer Tax Act, 2007 (Act No. 25 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Securities Transfer Tax Bill [B44 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 21 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30652 dated 8 January 2008

12. Securities Transfer Tax Administration Act, 2007 (Act No. 26 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Securities Transfer Tax Administration Bill [B45 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 21 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30653 dated 8 January 2008

13. Revenue Laws Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 35 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Revenue Laws Amendment Bill [B42 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 21 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30656 dated 8 January 2008

14. Revenue Laws Second Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 36 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Revenue Laws Second Amendment Bill [B43 – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 21 December 2007
Published in Government Gazette No. 30657 dated 8 January 2008

15. Cooperative Banks Act, 2007 (Act No. 40 of 2007)
Bill enacted: Co-operative Banks Bill [B13B – 2007]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 18 February 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 30802 dated 22 February 2008

16. Division of Revenue Act, 2008 (Act No. 2 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Division of Revenue Bill [B4 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 31 March 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 30940 dated 1 April 2008
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Purpose: Administration provides strategic management and administrative support to the
National Treasury, giving managerial leadership to the work of the department.  

Measurable objective: The programme aims to provide an effective leadership,
management and administrative support service to the core business divisions of the
Department, through the continuous refinement of organisational strategy and structure, to
ensure compliance with applicable legislation and alignment with appropriate best
practice. 

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

• The Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Minister of Finance and
includes parliamentary and ministerial support services.

• The Deputy Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Deputy Minister
of Finance and related support services.

• The Management subprogramme incorporates the Office of the Director-General and
related support services.

• The Corporate Services subprogramme supports the administration and effective
operation of the department.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Corporate Services division is responsible for the Administration programme. The
division is responsible for developing, maintaining and implementing the Department’s
governance framework, and aims to create a productive and creative working environment
that enhances departmental effectiveness. 

The Corporate Services division consists of seven units: Information Technology,
Facilities Management, Knowledge Management and Project Support, Security
Management, Financial Management, Internal Audit and Human Resources Management.
In the past year Corporate Services completed a records and documents management pilot
project.  The project outcomes created an electronic records management blueprint for the
rest of the department.  Other projects implemented successfully include the document
tracking system, e-registry, a  disaster recovery plan and business process re-engineering.

The Financial Management unit focuses on maximising compliance with the Public
Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA) and other relevant legislation. The unit
concluded its restructuring process and continued to ensure a sustained culture of financial
management compliance in the Department. During the review period the unit also
extended its functions through the establishment of a Risk Management function and
Governance Review Committee that will assist in reviewing and implementing
departmental policies, prescripts and/or instructions.

ONEProgramme 1

ADMINISTRATION
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The Internal Audit unit conducted an international benchmarking study with the
Canadian and Australian Treasuries which assisted in improving efficiencies.  This led to
the development of a strategic plan which was tabled and approved.  The unit completed
its Annual Audit Plan and reported the findings to the Audit Committee.  Internal Audit
also undertook a voluntary External Quality Review and was found to be compliant.

The Information Technology (IT) unit, together with the Communications unit,
redeveloped and launched a new departmental website. This has enhanced user
friendliness and improved the navigation process. Through the efforts of the unit the
national budget speech was also successfully webcast to all internet customers. IT also
implemented dedicated connectivity between the 240 Vermeulen and 40 Church Square
offices. During the G20 meetings the unit hosted all the IT and audiovisual  requirements.

The Security Management unit continued to ensure a secure and enabling working
environment. An evacuation drill and audit of emergency equipment was conducted.  A
Security Manual was approved and published on the intranet. During important events
such as the national Budget Speech and the G20, the unit successfully delivered on its
mandate.  The unit continued to screen new employees and ensured compliance with the
Minimum Information Security Standards. 

The Human Resources (HR) unit developed a talent management strategy and enhanced
the Graduate Development Programme which attracted new internship and Training
Outside Public Practice (TOPP) candidates. The department also received accreditation
from the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) to train prospective
Chartered Accountants. HR also focused on reviewing and improving the technical
abilities of its staff in order to ensure sustained service excellence.  The unit also noted
an increased participation of employees in Voluntary Counselling and Testing campaigns.
During the review period the unit ensured a reduction of the vacancy rate from 14 to 
10 per cent.  

The Facilities Management unit continued to manage the consumables bill and recorded
a further drop in expenditure.  An independent engineering evaluation was conducted on
emergency power systems in order to reduce the effects of load shedding.  

Legal Services provided legal services to the Minister, Deputy Minister, Director-General
and the rest of the department.  These included providing legal advice on a range of issues
in support of the work of the department. The unit was also involved in negotiating and
settling agreements relating to the Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
(CABRI), G20 and the Annual Bank Conference on Development Economics (ABCDE).
The unit continued to ensure that government’s exposure was mitigated and protected.
Legal Services played a crucial role in drafting and reviewing legislation.  

The Communications unit managed a number of study tours from countries visiting South
Africa to learn about the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) process and
supply chain policies.  During the period under review the unit managed media,
communication and marketing in all the G20 meetings, culminating in the Ministers and
Governors meeting in November 2007. Communications also managed the layout,
design, editing and printing of all departmental publications.  The unit continued to assist

Annual Report 2007/08 17>>
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the public with queries regarding pensions, tenders, tax and the general business of the
Department. The Department continued to enjoy a favourable media presence and
coverage which generated robust public discourse.  A number of media conferences and
workshops were held on pertinent issues and events.
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Purpose: Provide analysis and advice on fiscal policy and public finances,
intergovernmental financial relations, and expenditure planning and priorities. Manage
the annual budget process and provide public finance management support.  

Measurable objective: The programme aims to promote growth, social development and
poverty reduction through sound fiscal and financial policies, and the effective, efficient
and appropriate allocation of public funds. Measurable objectives are to:  

• Prepare a national budget that gives effect to government’s economic, fiscal, social
and development goals.

• Publish the Budget Review, Estimates of National Expenditure and Medium Term
Budget Policy Statement and appropriation legislation, containing relevant, accurate
and clear financial information and associated indicators of service delivery and
performance. 

• Contribute to public policy and programme development, sound planning, budgeting
and project management, including increased support to public finance reform in
provinces and municipalities.

• Promote public and private investment in infrastructure and public services by
providing technical support for capital expenditure planning and Public Private
Partnerships (PPP), advise on financing alternatives for municipal development and
financial assistance for neighbourhood development projects.

• Support improved monitoring and analysis of public expenditure and service delivery
and the appropriate use of public and private financial resources for social and
economic development and infrastructure investment.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Budget Office

Much of the work of the Budget Office is focused on coordinating the budget process,
providing advice to the Ministers’ Committee on the Budget, and monitoring fiscal and
public expenditure trends.

The Fiscal Policy unit plays a leading role in monitoring economic and fiscal trends and
advising the Minister of Finance on fiscal policy options and the Budget framework. It is
responsible for the annual Budget Review, the Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement
(MTBPS) and inputs to the deliberations of the Ministers' Committee on the Budget. 

TWOProgramme 2

PUBLIC FINANCE AND BUDGET MANAGEMENT
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Over the past year, policy advice and analysis focused on public service remuneration
issues, infrastructure investment and medium-term fiscal sustainability. This included
support for the occupation-specific dispensation policy for health, police and educators
and preparation for the new public sector wage agreement. Research also looked at the
capital spending plans of government departments, provinces and public entities; and
improved budgeting and planning processes for infrastructural investment. An analysis of
fiscal trends, government’s contribution to national savings and inter-temporal budget
implications was undertaken with a view to position the budget in support of
government’s social and economic objectives.

Fiscal Policy is extensively involved in interdepartmental budgetary and policy
consultation, including support to the Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA) relating to public-service wage bargaining, and liaison with the Department of
Trade and Industry (DTI) on critical infrastructure planning and budgeting.

The Expenditure Planning unit focuses on the coordination of the budget process in
preparing the annual Estimates of National Expenditure. The unit is also responsible for
the preparation of the Adjustments Budget that is tabled together with the MTBPS. 

In relation to the budget process, the Expenditure Planning unit works to improve
allocation decisions through increased political oversight, better evaluation of spending
proposals and improved spending information. The Framework for Managing Programme
Performance Information was published in 2007.

Other key activities over the past year include:

• Working closely with the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA)to
finalise outstanding cases of unauthorised expenditure. A Finance Act regularising
the expenditure was tabled on 31 March 2007.

• Briefing parliamentary committees on the budget process and budget documents.

• Providing training on planning and budgeting to parliamentary researchers.

• Administering research projects that seek to improve the pro-poor impact of budget
programmes.

The Public Finance Statistics unit focuses mainly on the production of appropriately
classified fiscal data in various National Treasury publications in support of fiscal
transparency and accountability. The data is also submitted to the International Monetary
Fund (IMF). 

During 2007/08 the team focused mainly on further enhancements to existing reforms
introduced during previous financial years, which includes the following:

• A complete review of the government chart of accounts was concluded in
collaboration with between the Budget Office and Office of the Accountant General.
This project will see the introduction of a new chart that will ensure improved
reporting on infrastructure and capital spending and that paves the way for the
introduction of asset management systems in future.

• Improvement of existing databases used for reporting data on all spheres of
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government and the consolidated government account, providing better-quality
statistics to users. These improvements were supported by extensive capacity-
building programmes at the national and provincial level.

• During the review period an additional 35 public entities were included into the
consolidated government accounts, improving coverage to about 65 per cent of public
entities, representing 90 per cent of government resources controlled by entities. This
process is further enhanced by an improved National Treasury data collection process
that will improve the efficiency of data flows between public entities and government
and will ensure accuracy in the consolidations process.

The focus over the next few years will be on consolidating the reforms introduced in past
financial years. This will involve further training and capacity building processes within
departments to ensure a smooth transition to the revised government chart of accounts,
ensuring improved reporting on infrastructure spending and assets owned by departments.
Reporting models and databases will be enhanced in order to ensure accurate reporting on
spending on the 2010 FIFA World Cup™ and spending on Research and Development in
various departments. Further work will also be done on providing for an appropriate
database platform for the government statistics produced by the unit in order to enhance
the quality of data and improve public access to the data.

The Public-Private Partnership (PPP) unit regulates PPPs in terms of Treasury
Regulation 16 to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), and in terms of PPP
regulations to the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). 

Continuing the momentum achieved in the  2006/07  financial  year where  six PPPs
reached financial closure, the unit closed another five PPP deals in  
2007/08.

The unit successfully concluded its initiative to enhance support to line departments and
municipalities during the review period by establishing a contract management desk.  For
the reporting period the position of the Head: Contract Management Desk was advertised.
This new area of support has begun assisting institutions utilising the PPP contract
management framework. 

The unit concluded the first PPP under the newly-launched PPP Tourism Toolkit.

The review of Standardised PPP Agreement provisions is almost complete. Consultations
with government and private sector stakeholders have been planned.

The comprehensive municipal service delivery and PPP guidelines have been published
and an extensive, province-by-province rollout is underway. This was a collaborative
process between National Treasury and the Department of Provincial and Local
Government.  Ongoing training programmes are underway in municipalities to broaden
the understanding of PPPs.  Also over 300 officials from South Africa and abroad have
received PPP related training.

The International Development Cooperation unit is responsible for the establishment of
an effective and efficient policy framework and management system to deal with Official
Development Assistance (ODA) to South Africa. During the review period the unit: 

Programme 2:  Publ ic  Finance and Budget  Management
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• Implemented the policy framework and procedural guidelines to manage ODA flows
into South Africa.  

• Enhanced coordination through ODA coordinators’ fora at national and provincial
levels. 

• Hosted the Development Counsellors’ Forum for strategic management of donor
interventions.

• Completed the South Africa-France Partnership Agreement.

• Finalised the development cooperation strategy for South Africa with the European
Commission and 11 member states, applicable from 2007 to 2013, valued at 
980 million Euros.  

• Organised 11 annual consultations and/or joint commissions with partner countries
and multilateral bodies to review implementation and programming.

• Contributed to ODA reform efforts internationally in areas such as harmonisation, aid
effectiveness and recipient empowerment.

• Organised the G20 Aid Effectiveness Forum in 2007.  

• Built capacity for ODA management and coordination in all spheres of government. 

• Continued to enhance ODA information management through maintenance and
refinement of a central information system.

The Neighbourhood Development Programme unit administers the Neighbourhood
Development Partnership Grant (NDPG). The NDPG unit provides municipalities with
technical assistance to develop project proposals for property development in townships
and residential neighbourhoods, and capital grants for the construction and/or upgrading
of community facilities and economic infrastructure. The following were achieved:

• The 2007/08 – 2010/11 NDPG Business Plan was approved by the Minister in
December 2007.

• The successful formation of the Training for Township Renewal Initiative which is a
partnership between the National Treasury, the South African Cities Network, the
Department of Provincial and Local Government, the Development Bank of South
Africa and others. The unit also hosted two sessions covering financial and economic
analysis. 

• Rounds two and three have been finalised out of a total of four, and approvals
obtained for a total of 72 awards. 

• Over 90 townships are to be addressed in terms of the awards.

• The quality of submissions from municipalities for Round three has significantly
improved, with 80 per cent of the 30 targeted municipalities submitting applications
in alignment to the NDPG’s goals.

• 37 Funding Agreements have been concluded 31 March 2008.
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• About R45 million was disbursed by the end of March 2008 – this was far less than
planned. Poor performance by municipalities is partly related to long delays within
municipalities to secure strategic planning and project management capacity to drive
and package projects. 

• Central technical assistants have been deployed to municipalities such as Tshwane,
City of Joburg, Francis Baard, Greater Taung, uMngeni, uPhongola, Sisonke,
Greater Edendale and Ndwedwe. 

• Conditional Grants have been disbursed for projects such as eThekwini’s
KwaMashu Town Centre, Inanda-KwaMashu-Ntuzuma's Bridge City,
KwaDabeka/Clermont and King Sabata Dalindyebo's Ngangelizwe.

The Public Entities Governance unit (PEGU) was set up as a new chief directorate in the
Budget Office in 2006 to implement the recommendations of the 2004/05 public entities
governance framework review. 

A key element of the budget reform programme is the extension of budget planning and
oversight to include the full range of government agencies and public entities – while
distinguishing appropriately between entities wholly or largely reliant on transfers from
the fiscus and entities operating on a commercial basis without recourse to nationally
raised revenue.  

PEGU assists with the preparation of consolidated financial accounts, maintains a
budgetary database and appropriate administrative records of the entire general
government sector, inclusive of public entities. The unit is in the process of creating a
coherent regulatory environment to promote a consistent approach to governance, human
resource management and financial management in the public sector, including ‘extra-
budgetary’ entities. In the reporting period two entities were listed, and one de-listed.

Public Finance

The Public Finance division has responsibility for advising the Minister of Finance on
sectoral policies and departmental spending programmes, evaluating budget submissions
of national departments, and monitoring spending and service delivery trends. Budget
analysts of this division monitor and evaluate spending trends across government
departments and agencies, provide support for financial administrative improvements,
such as the implementation of the standard chart of accounts and compliance with the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), and provide advice to the Minister of Finance
on sectoral policy matters.

The Administrative Services unit oversees the finances and budgets of a range of central
government responsibilities, including foreign policy (Foreign Affairs),  macroeconomic,
fiscal and financial policies (National Treasury), land and accommodation (Public
Works), training (South African Management Development Institute), communication
services (Government Communication and Information System) and statistics (Statistics
South Africa), and enabling the rights of citizens and residents (Home Affairs).
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Key areas of work in 2007/08 included:

• Foreign Affairs: Worked with the department on refining the focus of the African
Renaissance Fund in post-conflict reconstruction and development in Africa as an
integral component of the broader strategy for aid to Africa. Assisted the department
as part of the International Relations Peace and Security (IRPS) cluster in articulating
South Africa’s position in international conventions and peace missions. 

• Home Affairs: Participated in the departmental review of legislative and policy
frameworks for civic and immigration services to citizens and supported business
process re-engineering initiatives and the future vision and design. 

• Public Service and Administration: Supported initiatives for improving government
administration, including planning towards the single public service and the one stop
government information centres.  

• Statistics South Africa: Assisted in budgeting and planning for household surveys, the
living conditions survey and Census 2011.

• National Treasury: Supported initiatives by the South African Revenue Service
(SARS) to strengthen capacity, modernise systems and improve project management.
Also assisted Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) with its planning and
budgeting framework. 

• South African Management Development Institute (SAMDI): Supported the
development of the strategy for a public service academy as well as the redesign of
public sector courses. 

• Public Works: Assisted in managing its property portfolio and putting government
accommodation services on a business-oriented footing. Initiated the devolution of
funds to provinces for accommodation related services. Participated in the planning
of improved border post infrastructure as well as border control.

Justice and Protection Services unit  contributes to policy planning, implementation and
alignment of the strategic objectives of the Criminal Justice System as well as the
Intergrated Justice System (IJS). In 2007/08, the unit provided technical assistance and
expertise on a range of key projects, including:

• Support for the devolution of custodial functions and responsibilities from the
Department of Public Works, including transfer of responsibility for police stations
to the Department of Safety and Security.

• Support for the implementation of a new business and governance model for the IJS
Programme, as well as the work plan and research design for the criminal justice
system review project.

• Guidance on appropriate funding for six new correctional facilities.

• Support to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development concerning the
establishment of a PPP arrangement for monies in trust and rollout of IT systems
aimed at improving the work of the department. 
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• Monitoring of capital modernisation projects of the Department of Defence. 

• Support to the Department of Foreign Affairs with the drafting of the White Paper on
the South African Participation in International Peace Missions. 

• Oversight of the special arms procurement programme of the South African National
Defence Force (SANDF) and the integration of the Special Defence Account
allocation into the relevant programmes.

• Assistance to the Independent Complaints Directorate (ICD) with the development of
a case flow management and monitoring tool.

The Social Services unit monitors and advices on a range of functions largely
administered by provincial departments.  During the review period the unit assessed and
analysed budget options and financial implications of service delivery.  

Policies and programmes that have come under review include:

• Education:  The proposed Grade R funding norms and standards, funding norms for
Further Education and Training (FET) colleges, the higher education funding review,
support for the National Students Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) and the legal
framework of the Fundisa Agreement.

• Arts and Culture: The funding model, legal and accountability framework for
community libraries and funding requirements of Freedom Park.

• Sport and Recreation: Funding for loveLife, and the conditional grant for Mass
Participation, School Sport and Legacy Projects. 

• Labour: National Youth Policy Initiatives, the  Review of the Umsobomvu Youth
Fund, preferential procurement status for the youth and people with disabilities, the
process required to integrate the occupational health and safety and compensation
fund competencies, review of Sector Education and Training Authorities. 

• Social Development: The development, planning and costing of the Occupation
Specific Dispensation (OSD) for Social Welfare professions, litigation matters
relating to social assistance, the costing of the extension of the Child Support Grant
to children up to the age of 15 and for the gradual phasing in of the Old Age Pension
for men between 60 and 65, costing and legislation for the expansion of the Early
Childhood Development programme, child protection strategy, general social
assistance grant increases and the Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Bill.

• Health: HIV and Aids National Strategic Plan costing, the Medicines Control Council
reform task team, allocations to universities for health professionals training, the
Medical Schemes Amendment Bill and Risk Equalisation Fund issues, review of
health sector progress and funding as well as improvements in financial management
in the health sector. 

The Urban Development and Infrastructure unit supports national departments involved
in the provision of infrastructure through budget and expenditure analysis. With
infrastructure investment in the public sector as a key driver of growth in the economy,
the unit focuses on policies and programmes for the delivery of networks infrastructure
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such as transport, electricity, water and sanitation, telecommunications and housing.
Specific areas of focus in the year under review include:

• Transport: Supported the incorporation of Shosholoza Meyl and Autopax into the
South African Rail Commuter Corporation; reviewed the public transport investment
plans and spending of municipalities and the rural transport strategy. Also supported
2010 transport services and the transport master plan and integrated infrastructure
planning processes.

• Housing: Policy and business case analysis of the Housing Development Agency
Bill; input into the study titled “The introduction of a housing tax credit system in
South Africa and support to the evaluation of the Neighbourhood Development
Partnership Grant and the President’s Second Economy Reference Group”. Also
assisted with legislation and reviewed funding instruments in support of housing
infrastructure.

• Water Affairs and Forestry: Engagement on the development of water conservation
and demand management policy and funding options; developing the bill for the
National Water Resources Infrastructure Agency; the turnaround plan for the Water
Trading Entity; implementation of water and sanitation services at schools and clinics
as well as the implementation of bulk infrastructure. 

• Energy: Engagement on the Integrated National Electrification Grant, Renewable
Energy, Regional Electricity Distributors (REDS) establishment, Electricity Pricing
Policy, and in early 2008 – on the electricity crisis – engaging with Eskom, the
National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA), Department of Minerals and
Energy (DME), the National Energy Response Team (NERT) and its subcommittees.

• Communications: Engagement on the Sentech Wireless Broadband business plan and
the special adjustment budget, World Cup 2010 ICT requirements, legislative
support, Digital Terrestrial Television working group and set-top boxes, Schools ICT
steering committee, universal services fund and agency issues.

• Infrastructure Project Support: Support for the construction of the De Hoop dam in
Limpopo. Also undertook an expenditure analysis of projects funded from the
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG). A technical evaluation of capital infrastructure
bids by departments was also undertaken. 

Economic Services: Deals with six national departments which have a direct impact on
economic growth and job creation. These are Agriculture, Environmental Affairs and
Tourism, Land Affairs, Public Enterprises, Science and Technology, and Trade and
Industry. Enhanced in-year expenditure monitoring was conducted for the six
departments and expenditure reports were produced together with an assessment of policy
proposals and capital requirements of: 

• Agriculture and Land Affairs: Options for accelerating land reform and agricultural
development, alignment of support for sustainable agricultural production and
business development, advice on implementation of the proactive land acquisition
strategy through amendments to the Provision of Land and Assistance Act relating to
ownership and control of agricultural enterprises in a trading entity.
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• Environmental Affairs and Tourism: Development of a model to improve domestic
waste collection, participation in review of South Africa’s response to climate change
and sustainable development, review of cost recovery and tariff setting for the fishing
industry and appropriate management and infrastructure planning for the fishing
harbours.

• Public Enterprises: Review of financial aspects of state enterprise restructuring,
including valuation of South African Express and payment to Transnet, capitalisation
of South African Airways, Denel’s turnaround strategy and capital requirements,
financing of the Pebble Bed Modular Reactor (PBMR) demonstration plant and
operational development, establishment of Infraco, VAT treatment of transfers to
State Owned Enterprises (SOEs).

• Science and Technology: Business case analysis of the Technology Innovation
Agency and the National Space Agency; evaluation of the Science and Technology
Laws Amendment Bill and the National Space Agency Bill; financial analysis of the
extension of the Square Kilometer Array radio telescope project and the development
of the South African National Research Network (SANReN) computer network
project.

• Trade and Industry: Financial analysis of the National Industrial Policy Framework
and the Industrial Policy Action Plan; review of the Small Business Strategy, the Film
Incentive Scheme, the Small and Medium Enterprise Development Programme
(SMEDP) incentive scheme and new Enterprise Investment Programme; evaluation
of the National Regulator for Compulsory Specifications Bill; Standards Bill and the
Draft Consumer Protection Bill; establishment of National Metrology Institute;
policy and business case analysis of the National Regulator for Compulsory
Specifications; fee structure review of SABS Trade Metrology; review of the Critical
Infrastructure Programme and participation in the Manufacturing Development
Board and various interdepartmental oversight bodies.

Technical and Management Support

The Technical Assistance unit (TAU), co-funded by the Canadian International
Development Agency (CIDA), provides programme and project management support to
government initiatives (including donor-funded programmes) to contribute to building
government’s capacity for effective programme and project delivery.

In 2007/08 TAU supported a total of 53 projects. At the end of the financial year 34 were
still current, whilst support to 19 projects was brought to a close, 17 were in the pipeline.
These projects covered all three spheres of government with support focused on
programme design, planning, support to the development of business plans, monitoring
and evaluation.

The following is a list of projects illustrating the range and type of support services
rendered to government departments:

• Health: CIDA funded programme in the NGO Co-ordination unit on HIV and AIDS
– design and implementation support
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• Environmental Affairs and Tourism: Integrated Coastal Management – leadership and
project management capacity development to set up a project management capability.

• Provincial and Local Government: Monitoring and Evaluation Framework –
developing models and performance indicators.

• National Treasury: Conditional Grants Improvement process – support to the cycle
for development and implementation of programmes including business plan
development.

• Premier’s Office, Mpumalanga: Cluster system review.

• Correctional Services: Monitoring and evaluation system – development of models
and performance indicators, as well as PPP prison specification refinement. 

• Arts and Culture: Libraries recapitalisation project – business plan development.

• Education: FET  Colleges – business plans development.

• Water Affairs and Forestry: Masibambane III – programme and project management
capacity building on the new engineering contract and associated regulations.

• Gert Sibande District Municipality: Setting up of a capacity building programme.

• City of Johannesburg: Diagnostic Study on support needs of the City of Matola in
Mozambique to inform the partnership agreement between the two cities.

TAU also focused on:

• Improved application of a results-based management approach in the technical and
advisory support including contribution to the development of the National
Treasury’s Framework for Programme Performance Information.

• Initiated a programme and project management framework for government.  

• Contributed to guidelines for managing function shifts in government.

The 2010 FIFA World Cup unit provides support to the Finance Minister and his Deputy
and the Local Organising Committee (LOC), for South Africa’s hosting of the 2010 FIFA
World Cup. The event provides opportunities to upgrade infrastructure and to market the
country as a destination for investment. 2010 has been used as an opportunity to channel
investment to key infrastructure programmes, including stadiums, transport, airports,
communications, accommodation, broadcasting and telecommunication technology. In
2007/08 government committed significant resources to ensure not only a successful
hosting of the 2010 FIFA World Cup competition but also a lasting legacy of new and
improved infrastructure. 

Highlights of 2007/08 include:   

• Bringing forward R1.9 billion in the 2007 Special Adjustments Act from outer years
of the MTEF to assist Host Cities with stadium construction and early procurement
of costly components, thus minimising the escalation costs. 

• Presentation of priority statements by Host Cities to the Department of Transport to
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enable further funding of public transport projects.

• Compilation of government’s funding contribution to the 2010 FIFA World Cup
project as a key component of the 2008 Budget. Further resources were set aside for
the World Cup, which is integrated into the much larger infrastructure spending
programme between 2006 and 2010. 

The 2010 unit supported other Departments and Host Cities responsible for the
implementation of 2010 FIFA World Cup Projects in project management, cost control
and contract management.  This effort resulted in improved cost management as well as
ensuring that timelines for the major infrastructure, especially the stadiums, will be met.

Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations division coordinates fiscal relations between the
national, provincial and local spheres of government.  This is an important function given
the design of intergovernmental funding arrangements, in which provinces and
municipalities were allocated R243.1 billion, or 49.7 per cent of non-interest
expenditure.  The bulk of these resources are expended on core programmes  such as
school education, public health care and provision of the free basic municipal services
(e.g. water, sanitation and electricity).

During the review period Intergovernmental Relations played a central role in compiling
consolidated provincial budgets and quarterly expenditure reports required in terms of
Section 32 of the PFMA, providing Parliament and provincial legislatures with valuable
data for exercising more effective oversight. For the first time, quarterly reports on
several municipal budgets were published. Similar consolidated reports on local
government required by Section 71 of the MFMA were compiled and published for local
government. The challenge is to expand coverage to all 283 municipalities across the
country, taking into consideration the varying capacity challenges facing municipalities. 

An internet-based course on the essentials of budget formulation was run in all nine
provinces for officials from the three spheres of government, and 300 participants
successfully completed the course. The course provides graduate-level training for
professional staff and managers in finance and budget sections of departments. 

Intergovernmental Relations also worked to ensure effective use of financial resources
through the infrastructure delivery improvement programme, monitoring and reporting
on provincial infrastructure delivery trends, and recommending a delay of transfers
where provinces failed to comply with the conditions of national grants. The aim was to
ensure that remedial steps were taken to improve the pace of delivery and the quality of
infrastructure. 

The division hosted quarterly meetings of officials from SALGA, provincial and national
departments to assist in the co-ordination of MFMA implementation across all
municipalities and provided hands-on support to 25 municipalities and nine provincial
treasuries to implement the MFMA. A total of 22 international advisors with expertise in
financial management were deployed to municipalities to support the preparation of
budgets, improve reporting and build local skills. In addition, three roving advisers were

Programme 2:  Publ ic  Finance and Budget  Management

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:44 PM Page 31



National Treasury<<32

made available to provinces to assist with the monitoring of municipal financial
management reforms.  The municipal finance recovery service was established during
2007 and is being resourced to assist municipalities develop and implement recovery
plans.

Building on the work of previous years, a total of 503 financial management interns were
part of the programme to build capacity in municipalities. Municipal capacity has been
further strengthened by the financial management grant, training of officials and
councillors, the issuance of guidelines and policy support.  Together these initiatives have
enabled the National Treasury to publish revenue and expenditure reports required in
terms of section 71 of the MFMA. 

The division continued to raise awareness and facilitating compliance with the provisions
of the MFMA by issueing circulars and guidelines to all municipalities.  The MFMA
implementation website registered a significant increase in hits during the review period.   

The division was responsible for monitoring all provincial and local government budgets,
and continued to compile a database of all such information. Working with other divisions
of the National Treasury, it also coordinated  Provincial Budgets and Expenditure Review
2003/04 – 2009/10. This publication sets out data on provincial budgets and expenditure
and analysed trends in service delivery.

The local government fiscal framework has been revised to provide greater financial
support to more poorer and rural municipalities. Specifically, the municipal infrastructure
grant allocation has been adjusted to ensure that each municipality at least receives a
minimum allocation of R5 million compared to allocations that were below R1 million.

To further enhance transparency, accountability, performance and planning, changes to
the 2007 Division of Revenue Act now require that provinces publish hospital budgets per
hospital, transfers to schools per school and housing allocations per municipality.
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Purpose: Asset and Liability Management is responsible for the prudent management of
government's financial assets and liabilities.

Measurable objective: This programme aims to ensure prudent cash and financial
management, oversight of state-owned entities and optimal management of the state’s
domestic and foreign debt. 

• Management manages the office of the head of the division. 

• Asset Management promotes the optimal allocation and use of financial resources
and sound corporate governance in state-owned entities through financial oversight
in accordance with government policy. 

• Liability Management provides for government's funding needs, manages domestic
and foreign debt, and contributes to the development of domestic capital markets.

• Financial Operations provides for prudent management of cash in all spheres of
government, efficient accounting of debt and investment transactions, supply of
reliable systems and provision of quality information. 

• Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains a risk management
framework.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Liability Management: For the first time in the history of South Africa, the country
recorded a budgete surplus driven by years of robust economic growth. This lowered the
government’s borrowing requirement, providing greater flexibility in policy choices.
Government’s debt management strategy has evolved from exclusively financing the
borrowing requirement to broader support for government’s macro-economic objectives.

During the review period the net negative borrowing requirement was R14.3 billion
compared to the budgeted R11.6 billion. This net cash inflow was used to increase cash
and other balances by R12.8 billion net debt was reduced by R1.5 billion through the
issuance of domestic short-term loans (R5.7 billion), domestic long-term loans 
(-R2.4 billion) and foreign long-term loans (-R4.8 billion). 

Government issued a 21-year inflation-linked bond to support liquidity in the domestic
market.  In addition, R4.1 billion of the R198 inflation-linked bond was switched into the
R202 and R210 longer dated inflation-linked bonds, assisting in building the volume of
inflation-linked benchmark bonds. Furthermore, reverse repo facilities vallued at 

THREProgramme 3

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
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R20 billion were transacted, to enhance efficiency in the primary and secondary inflation-
linked bond markets. 

To actively manage its foreign debt portfolio, government entered into buy-back and
exchange transactions that included the issuance of a US$1 billion loan that matures in
2022. The new bond with a coupon of 5.875% was issued at 120 basis points over the 
10-year US Treasury bond and 54 basis points over the fifteen year swap rate. These
transactions resulted in a net buy-back of US$218 million, equivalent to R1.6 billion.

Debt service cost as a percentage of GDP continued to decline, reaching 2.6 per cent of
GDP. 

Financial Operations: Provinces continued to use their intergovernmental cash
coordination accounts at the Corporation for Public Deposits as an investment and
bridging finance facility, resulting in a national and provincial government saving of 
3.89 per cent on short-term borrowing and a 0.7 per cent gain on investments. A similar
investment facility has been set up for other public entities.

The customisation of the foreign debt portion of the new back office system has been
completed and is currently being tested. In line with the revised divisional IT strategy, IT
governance is being addressed in conjunction with implementing the new back office
system.

Strategy and Risk Management: During 2007, government continued to actively manage
debt and sovereign external vulnerability,  also ensuring that the issuance of new debt
occurs within risk guidelines. 

The risk profile of government’s debt portfolio has been affected by the performance of
the rand against other currencies, movement in both domestic and international interest
rates, and the options chosen by the National Treasury in its funding strategy. Floating-
rate debt (treasury bills, inflation linked bonds and floating rate notes) accounted for 
25.5 per cent and fixed-income debt for 74.5 per cent of the domestic debt portfolio as at
31 March 2008, compared to the target of 30 per cent floating versus 70 per cent fixed-
income debt. The weighted modified duration of domestic marketable bonds, which
determines the sensitivity of the bond portfolio to interest rates, declined from 5.4 years
on 31 March 2007 to 5.3 years on 31 March 2008.  Foreign debt was 15 per cent of the
total debt portfolio as at 31 March 2008, remaining well within the 20-25 per cent target
range.  

During 2007, Moody’s Investor Service and Fitch Ratings revised South Africa’s
sovereign credit ratings from ‘stable’ to ‘positive’ because of the the country’s reduced
external vulnerability. 

Risks arising from contingent liabilities continued to be a strategic focus area. Monitoring
and the oversight role of contingent liability exposures arising from Public Private
Partnerships and broader fiscal liabilities were also incorporated in the management of
contingent liabilities. Counterparties are continuously reviewed and rated in terms of risk,
and government exposures are continuously adjusted.

Asset Management – During the review period State-Owned Entities (SOEs) remained
pivotal in lowering the cost of doing business in South Africa and promoting economic
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growth and development. SOEs continue to invest in financial resources and key
infrastructure projects that are intended to attract higher levels of sustainable investment.
Concerted effort should be placed on promoting and improving financial performance,
operational efficiency and effectiveness, sound governance, and the development impact
of the service provided by the SOEs. Furthermore, sound management of financial
resources within a robust treasury management framework is encouraged.

The following initiatives have been undertaken to support financial oversight:

• Promotion of appropriate treasury management policies and practices for SOEs.

• Proposing the Development Finance Institutions (DFIs) policy. 

• Evaluation and implementation of policies concerning financial distribution and
capital structure. 

• Continued investigation into a comprehensive shareholder management model. 

The review of SOE Treasury operations is ongoing with the relevant executive authorities
and individual entities regarding progress on the implementation of recommendations.

A three-phase approach was adopted for tackling the DFI mandate reviews. All the three
phases were completed by 31 March 2008. The recommendations of the review and the
development finance policy have been approved by Cabinet with some changes and the
implementation process will commence during 2008/09. National Treasury has completed
financial models for all Schedule 2 SOEs, and will engage with the SOEs and shareholder
departments to determine individual capital structures and dividend policies. Shareholder
management amendments have been accommodated in the Public Finance Management
Act Amendment Bill.

In the context of promoting optimal utilisation of available financial resources, thereby
ensuring a stable financial market, the borrowing activities of SOEs are monitored and
coordinated by compiling a consolidated maturity profile of the domestic and foreign debt
of government and SOEs on a quarterly basis. 

Dividends amounting to R2.5 billion were received from SOEs as a direct result of
government’s financial oversight.

Programme 3:  Asset  and Liabi l i ty  Management
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Purpose: Financial Management and Systems manages and regulates government’s
supply chain management processes, implements and maintains standardised financial
systems, and coordinates the implementation of the Public Finance Management Act
(PFMA) and related initiatives to build capacity.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to regulate and oversee public-sector
supply chain management and standardise the financial systems of national and provincial
government, while coordinating implementation of the PFMA. 

Managed by the Specialist Functions division, programme activities are carried out under
the following subprogrammes:

• Supply Chain Management develops policy that regulates supply chain management
processes in the public sector, monitors policy outcomes and facilitates and manages
transversal term contracts on behalf of government.

• PFMA Implementation and Coordination provides for the National Treasury’s role in
coordinating implementation of the PFMA and related training initiatives. 

• Financial Systems provides for the maintenance and enhancement of existing
financial management systems and the introduction of systems that are compliant
with both the PFMA and Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Supply Chain Management continued to improve SCM practices and procedures in all
spheres of government.  The Supply Chain Management Framework requires
departments, constitutional institutions and Schedule 3A and 3C public entities to
establish supply chain management units within the offices of chief financial officers; to
ensure that clear lines of authority and accountability exist; to improve sourcing
procedures and processes and to enhance asset and inventory management. All national
and provincial departments, constitutional institutions and Schedule 3A and 3C public
entities implemented the Framework.

The Municipal Supply Chain Management Framework has been implemented in all
municipalities and municipal entities.  

Government’s strategic procurement guideline and sourcing methodology help direct
state spending to achieve its broader socioeconomic objectives. The Specialist Functions
division is the custodian of strategic sourcing and is responsible for facilitating transversal
term contracts used by various national and provincial departments. During 2007/08
strategic sourcing was applied to 95 per cent of transversal term contracts.

FOURProgramme 4

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEMS
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During the review period Supply Chain Management issued three practice notes and three
circulars in terms of the PFMA and three circulars in terms of the MFMA.  These practice
notes and circulars were issued to enhance the supply chain management system. This
included aspects relating to procurement of goods and services by means other than
through the invitation of competitive bids, introducing reporting measures, revision of the
threshold values, the National Industrial Participation (NIP) programme, restrictions of
suppliers and checking the prohibition status of recommended bidders prior to awarding
any contract. 

Following the misalignment between the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework
Act, No 5 of 2000 (PPPFA) and the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, No
53 of 2003 (B-BBEEA) Cabinet directed that these should be reviewed such that
alignment exists with the set objectives. The approach to the alignment of the objectives
of the two acts was agreed upon by the National Treasury and the Department of Trade
and Industry.  Currently, the PPPFA regulations are incorporated as an integral part of the
broader regulations on Supply Chain Management that had been issued in terms of the
PFMA.  

Against this background certain provisions were included in the recommendations that
were submitted to Cabinet during May 2008 for the review of the PFMA; where these
provisions were intended to repeal the current PPPFA and give effect to the alignment of
the two acts in the reviewed PFMA and its new supporting regulations.  Cabinet resolved
that further consultation should take place between the Minister of Finance and the
Minister of  Trade and Industry.

Cabinet further directed that the Minister of Finance gives consideration to and submits
proposals in the possible establishment of a centrally located Compliance Office to
monitor procurement compliance at all spheres of government.  In this regard, the
National Treasury has commenced with certain initiatives to give effect to Cabinet’s
directive.  This monitoring of procurement compliance is consistent with National
Treasury’s power to monitor and assess prescribed norms and standards. 

PFMA Implementation and Coordination submitted detailed reports to the Portfolio
Committee on Finance and to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts on progress
with implementation of the PFMA. These reports focused on audit trends identified by the
Auditor-General during his 2005/06 audit and also provided details of National Treasury’s
interventions to help institutions rectify concerns raised by the Auditor-General.  These
interventions included:

• the annual development of reporting frameworks within which national and
provincial departments account for and report on their transactions;

• appointed a service provider to conduct the internal audit and external quality
assurance reviews to ensure that a uniform approach is followed when conducting
such reviews;

• conducted a risk management survey among national and provincial departments to
identify challenging areas after which appropriate strategies were developed; and

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:47 PM Page 49



National Treasury<<50

• developed questionnaires to generate early warning reports such that corrective steps
could be taken to address potential audit concerns.

During the period under review, a memorandum was presented to Cabinet on the audit
outcomes of national and provincial institutions for 2006/07. The memorandum also
focused on the tabling of annual reports and financial statements in the legislature by all
PFMA compliant institutions.  Cabinet resolved that institutions should submit corrective
plans to the National Treasury detailing how they would rectify concerns raised in their
audit reports.

During 2007/08, National Treasury continued to work with South African Management
Development Institute (SAMDI) to provide supply chain management training. A total of
2 405 trainees participated in 116 courses.  Supply chain management did not realise all
the intended results, as the roll out of the strategic sourcing training was deferred, pending
the development and finalisation of unit standards and training on alignment of the
PPPFA and the B-BBEEA.  In addition, delays were also expierenced in respect of
contract management training. 

National Treasury in collaboration with SAMDI also developed a financial management
training strategy.  The National Treasury continued to provide the institute with technical
support to ensure that training material is aligned with legislative and financial reforms.
Through a bid process, SAMDI selected four training service providers for the roll out of
11 high quality short courses at competitive rates. 

During 2007/08 a total of 1 273 trainees benefited from 78 internal audit as well as risk
management and accounting related courses. This training also did not materialise to the
extent anticipated, largely due to delays experienced by SAMDI in the finalisation of the
required training material. The training only commenced in July 2007 instead of April
2007. SAMDI’s transition towards an academy also contributed towards the training not
being rolled out to the extent planned.

During January 2008, the National Treasury distributed the Public Finance Management
Bill to institutions within Government with an invitation to provide comments. The Bill
was subsequently updated with comments received. 

Financial Systems: A tender for the integrated development environment toolset was
awarded in November 2007, adding to the significant progress made on the Integrated
Financial Management Systems (IFMS) project

The Procurement Commercial-Off-The-Shelf (COTS) tender as well as the Human
Resource (HR) Management COTS tenders were conditionally awarded in November
2007 and December 2007 respectively. In April 2008 contract negotiations commenced
with the Procurement COTS tender while in May 2008 contract negotiations commenced
with the HR COTS tender. These tenders have added to the growing momentum for the
project and have not only provided early deliverables but also made up for initial delays.
A substantive decline in progress was also noticed as a result of difficulty in accessing
appropriate information and communication technology skills by the State Information
Technology Agency (SITA).
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Existing systems continue to be maintained to support critical requirements in line with
the PFMA, and their performance during the year has been according to expectations.
SITA continues to review required capacity on the mainframes and protection of the
networks.

Programme 4:  Financial  Management and Systems
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Purpose: Financial Accounting and Reporting seeks to enhance accountability and
governance by promoting the transparent, efficient and prudent management of revenue,
expenditure, assets and liabilities. It develops frameworks, guidelines, practice notes and
transversal policies for internal auditing, risk management and accounting for the public
service. It sets new government accounting policies and practices, and improves existing
ones, to ensure compliance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP);
prepares consolidated financial statements; and works to improve the timeliness and
accuracy of financial reporting.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to promote accountability to the general
public by promoting transparency and effective management of revenue, expenditure,
assets and liabilities in the public sector.

The programme consists of six subprogrammes:

• Financial Reporting for National Accounts is responsible for accounting for the
National Revenue Fund and the RDP Fund, banking services for national
government, and preparing consolidated financial statements.

• Financial Management Improvement includes improving financial management
through training, developing and implementing accounting policies and internal audit
services. 

• Investment of Public Monies accommodates augmentation of the Public Investment
Corporation’s (PIC) bank account. 

• Service Charges (Commercial Banks) provides for bank service charges for all
departments’ deposit accounts.

• Audit Statutory Bodies provides for compensation for certain shortfalls of statutory
bodies and municipalities in terms of the Auditor-General Act (12 of 1995).

• Contingent Liabilities: Reinsurance Liabilities provides for reinsurance granted to
insurers arising from loss or damage to property, funds payments or consequential
loss as a result of riots in terms of the Reinsurance of Damages and Losses Act 
(54 of 1989), and grants loans and advances to such insurers in terms of the act.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Financial Reporting for National Accounts unit produced a set of Consolidated
Financial Information (CFI) for national government for 2006/07. The CFI was audited
and tabled in Parliament in compliance with the requirements of the Public Finance

FIVEProgramme 5

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:47 PM Page 54



Annual Report 2007/08 55>>

Management Act (PFMA). Challenges in respect of the consolidation process, are a result
of the application of the cash and accrual bases of accounting in government departments
and public entities respectively. 

In order to improve the quality of the CFI  and support government departments in
preparing for the 2007/08 financial year end, a standardised financial reporting template
was developed. This was done in consultation with various stakeholders, including
departments, public entities and the Office of the Auditor-General. The templates
incorporated policy improvements to the reporting framework in line with GRAP
standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and the transition to the
accrual basis of accounting. A template for the consolidation process was also developed
during the year to facilitate the process.  

Workshops and other targeted initiatives ensured a successful implementation of the
reporting frameworks.  During the review period there was notable improvement in terms
of PFMA compliance. The division also ensured compliance with the annual financial
statements submission and publication requirements through regular support and formal
communication.

The financial year ending 30 June 2006 was the first year in which high capacity
municipalities had to comply with all provisions of the Municipal Finance Management
the Act (MFMA). This was challenging for the majority of the municipalities in relation
to compliance with the new accounting standards. The Minister granted an exemption
from compliance with some of the required standards. This delayed the implementation
of the more complex standards as stipulated in government gazette 30013 dated 29 June
2007. An explanatory memorandum on the application of this gazette through circular no.
44 was provided. 

The Financial Management Improvement unit continued to develop new and refined
existing accounting policies to comply with the standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB). These policies were included in the guidelines for the preparation
of the annual financial statements for national and provincial departments. 

In order to assist departments, public entities and local government improve the quality
and timing of their annual reports, the division issued the reporting frameworks and
templates to be used for the annual financial statements for the year ending 31 March
2009. 

The implementation of 17 additional standards of GRAP for public entities, municipalities
and municipal entities as stipulated in government gazette number 31021 was approved
by the Minister. The division prepared a set of guidelines for public entities and worked
with the ASB on the transitional provisions relating to the more complex standards. These
transitional provisions offer guidelines on the first time adoption of the standards and in
some cases allow entities additional time to comply with the standards. 

The division continued to participate in various local and international public sector
technical fora. In addition, the division continued to support the East and Southern
African Association of Accountants-General (ESAAG) member countries with training
on the cash and accrual International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
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The Financial Management Improvement subprogramme revised the internal audit and
risk management frameworks in local government, and continued to support internal
auditors and risk managers in all spheres of government. Support in these areas included
training sessions which benefited 394 internal auditors and 150 risk management officials. 

In an effort to enhance governance processes in government departments and
municipalities the OAG conducted internal audit Quality Assurance Reviews (QAR) for
36 municipalities and 18 out of 19 national departments. 

The OAG successfully hosted an Internal Audit Indaba and Risk Management
Symposium to enhance knowledge sharing among government officials. The survey of
government risk management was finalised with the assistance of Statistics South Africa.
The results of the survey provide invaluable insight for the development of risk
management support initiatives. 

During the review period the National Treasury was accredited as an Approved Training
Organisation (ATO) to offer training for chartered accountants by the South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) through the Training Outside Public Practice
(TOPP) programme. The TOPP programme which has eight trainees was formally
implemented in January 2008. The National Treasury further sponsored 10 learners in
SAICA’s Thuthuka Bursary Fund. The OAG continued to employ interns in risk
management, internal audit and accounting. 

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:47 PM Page 56



Annual Report 2007/08 57>>

Me
as

ur
ab

le 
ob

jec
tiv

e:
 T

o a
ch

iev
e a

cc
ou

nta
bil

ity
 to

 th
e g

en
er

al 
pu

bli
c b

y p
ro

mo
tin

g t
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y a
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
e m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f r

ev
en

ue
, e

xp
en

dit
ur

e, 
as

se
ts 

an
d l

iab
ilit

ies
 in

 th
e p

ub
lic

 se
cto

r 
Ac

tu
al 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ag

ain
st

 ta
rg

et
 

Su
bp

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Ou

tp
ut

 
Ou

tp
ut

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
Me

as
ur

e/s
er

vic
e d

eli
ve

ry
 in

di
ca

to
r 

Ta
rg

et
 

Ac
tu

al 

Mo
nth

ly 
sta

tem
en

ts 
of 

ac
tua

l re
ve

nu
e 

an
d e

xp
en

dit
ur

e w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

Na
tio

na
l R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

Tim
ely

 pu
bli

sh
ing

 of
 ac

cu
ra

te 
re

po
rts

 
W

ith
in 

30
 da

ys
 of

 m
on

th-
en

d 
Al

l m
on

thl
y s

tat
em

en
ts 

we
re

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 on
 tim

e 

Sp
ec

im
en

 fo
rm

ats
 fo

r C
on

so
lid

ate
d 

An
nu

al 
Fin

an
cia

l S
tat

em
en

ts 
(C

AF
S)

 
an

d c
on

du
ct 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n s

es
sio

ns
  

Ag
re

ed
 fo

rm
ats

 fo
r A

nn
ua

l 
Co

ns
oli

da
ted

 A
nn

ua
l F

ina
nc

ial
 

St
ate

me
nts

 (C
AF

S)
  th

at 
co

mp
ly 

wi
th 

go
ve

rn
me

nt 
pr

es
cri

pts
  

28
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 2

00
7 f

or
 20

06
/07

 
Sp

ec
im

en
 fo

rm
ats

 w
er

e f
ina

lis
ed

 an
d 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n s

es
sio

ns
 co

nd
uc

ted
 on

 tim
e 

Co
ns

oli
da

ted
 A

FS
 fo

r n
ati

on
al 

go
ve

rn
me

nt 
su

bm
itte

d t
o A

ud
ito

r-
Ge

ne
ra

l 

 20
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

7 
Co

ns
oli

da
ted

 A
FS

 w
er

e s
ub

mi
tte

d t
o t

he
 A

ud
ito

r-
Ge

ne
ra

l o
n t

im
e 

Co
ns

oli
da

ted
 A

FS
 fo

r n
ati

on
al 

go
ve

rn
me

nt 

Ta
bli

ng
 of

 C
AF

S 
in 

Pa
rlia

me
nt 

31
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

7 
Th

e c
on

so
lid

ate
d A

nn
ua

l F
ina

nc
ial

 In
for

ma
tio

n 
tab

led
 by

 30
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

7 

AF
S 

for
 th

e R
DP

 F
un

d 
Au

dit
ed

 an
d p

ub
lis

he
d a

nn
ua

l 
fin

an
cia

l s
tat

em
en

ts 
for

 th
e R

DP
 

Fu
nd

 

31
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

7 
Th

e R
DP

’s 
An

nu
al 

Fin
an

cia
l S

tat
em

en
ts 

we
re

 
au

dit
ed

 an
d p

ub
lis

he
d b

y 3
0 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
7 

By
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 2

00
8 f

or
 20

08
/09

 fin
an

cia
l 

ye
ar

 
Ma

y t
o J

un
e  

4 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
ial

 O
ffic

er
s’ 

for
a p

er
 

ye
ar

 

Tr
ain

ing
 fo

r a
ll d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts 
by

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 2
00

8 
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t tr
ain

ing
 do

ne
 in

 Ju
ne

 20
07

 
CF

O 
for

a h
eld

 du
rin

g t
he

 re
vie

w 
pe

rio
d 

Fin
an

cia
l R

ep
or

tin
g f

or
 N

ati
on

al 
Ac

co
un

ts 

Su
pp

or
t im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f r

ep
or

tin
g 

fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d r

ela
ted

 to
pic

s 
Tr

ain
ing

 on
 te

mp
lat

es
 an

d r
efo

rm
s: 

 
De

pa
rtm

en
ts 

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

Inf
or

ma
tio

n s
ha

rin
g f

or
a 

2 P
ro

vin
cia

l A
cc

ou
nta

nts
-G

en
er

al 
for

a 
pe

r y
ea

r 
2 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 th

e P
ro

vin
cia

l A
cc

ou
nta

nts
-G

en
er

al 
he

ld 
 

SE
R
VI
C
E 
D
EL

IV
ER

Y 
A
C
H
IE
VE

M
EN

T
Pr
og

ra
m
m
e 
5:
 F
in
an

ci
al
 A
cc
ou

nt
in
g 
an

d 
R
ep

or
tin

g

P rogramme 5:  Financial  Accounting and Report ing

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:47 PM Page 57



National Treasury<<58

Ac
tu

al 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st
 ta

rg
et

 
Su

bp
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ou
tp

ut
 

Ou
tp

ut
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Me
as

ur
e/s

er
vic

e d
eli

ve
ry

 in
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
Ac

tu
al 

En
ha

nc
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k f
or

 th
e t

ra
ns

itio
n 

fro
m 

ca
sh

 to
 ac

cru
al 

ba
sis

 of
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 

Co
mp

let
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k f
or

 tr
an

sit
ion

 
co

mp
lie

s w
ith

 th
e A

SB
 w

or
k p

lan
 

an
d a

dh
er

es
 to

 be
st 

pr
ac

tic
e 

Up
da

ted
 m

oti
va

tio
n p

ap
er

 by
 31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
08

  
Mo

tiv
ati

on
 pa

pe
r u

pd
ate

d. 
 D

ev
elo

pe
d a

 da
tab

as
e 

of 
GR

AP
 ac

co
un

tin
g a

nd
 di

sc
los

ur
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d i
de

nti
fie

d a
me

nd
me

nts
 to

 be
 m

ad
e t

o t
he

 
sp

ec
im

en
 ov

er
 th

e M
TE

F,
 ba

se
d o

n s
ys

tem
 

ca
pa

bil
itie

s a
s w

ell
 as

 th
e t

im
e r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 up
loa

d 
inf

or
ma

tio
n  

 
Re

po
rtin

g f
ra

me
wo

rk 
do

cu
me

nt 
for

 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts,

 an
d c

on
so

lid
ati

on
 

tem
pla

te 
for

 pu
bli

c e
nti

tie
s 

31
 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 fo
r 2

00
8/0

9 
Fr

am
ew

or
k f

or
 20

08
/09

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 by
 31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
08

   
 

Sp
ec

im
en

 A
FS

 te
mp

lat
e i

ss
ue

d 
31

 M
ar

ch
 20

08
 fo

r 2
00

8/0
9 

 
W

or
k i

n p
ro

gr
es

s a
 te

mp
lat

e f
or

 20
08

/09
 an

d w
ill 

be
 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 30

 Ju
ne

 20
08

.  D
ela

ys
 ca

us
ed

 by
 th

e 
SC

OA
 tr

ain
ing

 an
d t

he
 la

ck
 of

 da
ta 

(in
 th

e n
ew

 B
AS

 
da

tab
as

es
) t

o t
es

t th
e t

em
pla

te 
  

Te
mp

lat
e f

or
 pu

bli
c e

nti
tie

s f
or

 th
e 2

00
8/0

9 f
ina

nc
ial

 
ye

ar
 fin

ali
se

d b
y 3

1 M
ar

ch
 20

08
 

Fin
al 

pr
ep

ar
ati

on
 gu

ide
 fo

r A
FS

 
iss

ue
d 

31
 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 fo
r 2

00
8/0

9 
 

Pr
ep

ar
ati

on
 gu

ide
 w

ill 
be

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 al
on

g w
ith

 th
e 

fin
al 

tem
pla

te 
by

 30
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 (a

dd
itio

na
l g

uid
an

ce
 

is 
re

qu
ire

d o
n t

he
 ne

w 
tem

pla
te 

wh
ich

 w
ill 

be
 

fin
ali

se
d b

y e
nd

 Ju
ne

) 

An
nu

al 
fin

an
cia

l re
po

rtin
g f

ra
me

wo
rk 

in 
lin

e w
ith

 fin
an

cia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
lan

 

Pr
ep

ar
ati

on
 gu

ide
 fo

r a
nn

ua
l re

po
rt 

31
 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 fo
r 2

00
8/0

9 
Pr

ep
ar

ati
on

 gu
ide

 w
ill 

be
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 al

on
g w

ith
 th

e 
fin

al 
ex

ce
l te

mp
lat

e b
y 3

0 J
un

e 2
00

8 (
ad

dit
ion

al 
gu

ida
nc

e i
s r

eq
uir

ed
 on

 th
e n

ew
 te

mp
lat

e w
hic

h w
ill 

be
 fin

ali
se

d b
y e

nd
 Ju

ne
) 

Fin
an

cia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Ac
co

un
tin

g p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 
su

pp
or

t o
f fr

am
ew

or
k f

or
 tr

an
sit

ion
 

fro
m 

ca
sh

 to
 ac

cru
al 

ba
sis

 of
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 

Ac
co

un
tin

g p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 
lin

e w
ith

 ap
pr

ov
ed

 ac
co

un
tin

g 
sta

nd
ar

ds
 an

d a
dh

er
e t

o b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
Fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t p

oli
cie

s t
o 

pr
om

ote
 so

un
d m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
re

fle
cti

ng
 be

st 
pr

ac
tic

e 

10
0%

 al
ign

me
nt 

to 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

sta
nd

ar
ds

 
Al

l a
cc

ru
al 

ac
co

un
tin

g p
oli

cie
s i

n G
RA

P 
da

tab
as

e 
we

re
 up

da
ted

 an
d a

lig
ne

d t
o t

he
 G

RA
P 

sta
nd

ar
ds

 
an

d t
he

 hi
er

ar
ch

y i
n G

RA
P 

3 w
he

re
 ap

pr
op

ria
te 

Al
l c

as
h a

cc
ou

nti
ng

 po
lic

ies
 ap

pli
ed

 by
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

ar
e i

n l
ine

 w
ith

 le
gis

lat
ive

 pr
es

cri
pts

, s
ys

tem
 

ca
pa

bil
itie

s a
nd

 th
e a

cc
ou

nti
ng

 st
an

da
rd

s w
he

re
 

po
ss

ibl
e 

 

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:48 PM Page 58



Annual Report 2007/08 59>>

Ac
tu

al 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st
 ta

rg
et

 
Su

bp
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ou
tp

ut
 

Ou
tp

ut
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Me
as

ur
e/s

er
vic

e d
eli

ve
ry

 in
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
Ac

tu
al 

Int
er

na
l a

ud
it a

nd
 ris

k m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fra
me

wo
rks

 fo
r n

ati
on

al 
an

d p
ro

vin
cia

l 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

Re
vis

ion
 of

 in
ter

na
l a

ud
it f

ra
me

wo
rk 

 
Ap

pr
ov

al 
of 

the
 re

vis
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k b
y 

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7 

Int
er

na
l A

ud
it F

ra
me

wo
rk 

ha
s b

ee
n c

om
ple

ted
  

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ra
me

wo
rk 

co
mp

let
ed

 an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. T
he

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 pr

oc
es

s o
n t

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g t
em

pla
tes

 is
 on

go
ing

 an
d w

ill 
be

 
co

nc
lud

ed
 in

 Ju
ne

  
Re

lev
an

t tr
ain

ing
 pr

og
ra

mm
es

 on
 

int
er

na
l a

ud
it, 

foc
us

ing
 on

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 au
dit

s 
Fa

cil
ita

te 
re

gu
lar

 tr
ain

ing
 

pr
og

ra
mm

es
 an

d w
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7 

 
39

4 i
nte

rn
al 

au
dit

or
s w

er
e t

ra
ine

d o
n 

“F
un

da
me

nta
ls 

of 
int

er
na

l a
ud

itin
g”

. T
he

 tr
ain

ing
 

pr
og

ra
mm

es
 to

ok
 pl

ac
e i

n a
ll s

ph
er

es
 of

 
go

ve
rn

me
nts

  

Nu
mb

er
 of

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

At
 le

as
t o

ne
 na

tio
na

l w
or

ks
ho

p a
nd

 
on

e w
or

ks
ho

p p
er

 pr
ov

inc
e 

 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t tr

ain
ing

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

er
e h

eld
 in

 
wh

ich
 ap

pr
ox

im
ate

ly 
15

0 o
ffic

ial
s w

er
e t

ra
ine

d. 
3 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t fo

ra
 he

ld 
du

rin
g t

he
 ye

ar
  

An
nu

al 
int

er
na

l a
ud

it i
nd

ab
a 

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 20

08
 

 
Ind

ab
a s

uc
ce

ss
ful

ly 
he

ld 
in 

Du
rb

an
 w

ith
 ov

er
 43

7 
de

leg
ate

s i
n a

tte
nd

an
ce

. T
he

 ov
er

all
 ra

tin
g f

or
 th

e 
co

nfe
re

nc
e i

mp
ro

ve
d f

ro
m 

80
%

 in
 20

07
 to

 84
%

 in
 

20
08

. A
n R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ym

po
siu

m 
wa

s a
lso

  
he

ld 
wi

th 
ov

er
  4

00
 of

fic
ial

s i
n a

tte
nd

an
ce

   

 

En
ha

nc
e s

er
vic

e d
eli

ve
ry 

ca
pa

bil
ity

 of
 

au
dit

 co
mm

itte
es

, in
ter

na
l a

ud
ito

rs 
an

d 
ris

k m
an

ag
er

s t
hr

ou
gh

 tr
ain

ing
 

pr
og

ra
mm

es
 an

d w
or

ks
ho

ps
  

Ro
ll o

ut 
ris

k m
an

ag
em

en
t s

oft
wa

re
 

to 
a s

pe
cif

ied
 nu

mb
er

 of
 si

tes
 

So
ftw

ar
e o

pe
ra

tio
na

l a
t 4

0 s
ite

s 
(d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts,
 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 an

d 
en

titi
es

) 3
1 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 

Th
e s

oft
wa

re
 w

as
 m

ar
ke

ted
 ex

ten
siv

ely
 du

rin
g t

he
 

ye
ar

.  F
oll

ow
ing

 su
ch

 pu
bli

cit
y 3

3 i
ns

titu
tio

ns
 

re
qu

es
ted

 de
mo

ns
tra

tio
ns

 of
 th

e s
oft

wa
re

, w
hic

h 
we

re
 do

ne
.  O

f th
es

e 2
8 i

ns
titu

tio
ns

 re
qu

es
ted

 to
 

us
e t

he
 sy

ste
m,

 w
hic

h w
as

 du
ly 

ins
tal

led
.  I

n 
ad

dit
ion

 tr
ain

ing
 an

d s
up

po
rt 

wa
s p

ro
vid

ed
 to

 al
l 

the
se

 in
sti

tut
ion

s  
 

 

Programme 5:  Financial  Accounting and Report ing

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:48 PM Page 59



National Treasury<<60

Ac
tu

al 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st
 ta

rg
et

 
Su

bp
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ou
tp

ut
 

Ou
tp

ut
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Me
as

ur
e/s

er
vic

e d
eli

ve
ry

 in
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
Ac

tu
al 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

 
 

Re
po

rt 
on

 Q
AR

’s 
for

 20
 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 

su
bm

itte
d t

o r
ele

va
nt 

co
un

cil
s b

y 3
1 

Ma
rch

 20
08

 
 

Int
er

na
l a

ud
it r

ev
iew

s p
er

for
me

d i
n 3

6 
mu

nic
ipa

liti
es

 
 

Co
nd

uc
t o

r F
ac

ilit
ate

 Q
ua

lity
 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
Re

vie
ws

 (Q
AR

s) 
in 

Lo
ca

l 
Go

ve
rn

me
nt 

an
d q

ua
lify

ing
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
 

Ex
ter

na
l Q

AR
’s 

fac
ilit

ate
d f

or
 al

l 
qu

ali
fyi

ng
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

by
 31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
08

 (a
ll d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts 
qu

ali
fyi

ng
 in

 
ter

ms
 of

 th
e s

tan
da

rd
s) 

 

18
 na

tio
na

l d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts’

 ex
ter

na
l q

ua
lity

 re
vie

ws
 

co
mp

let
ed

 

Co
nd

uc
t s

ur
ve

y o
f s

tat
us

 of
 R

isk
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
in 

na
tio

na
l a

nd
 pr

ov
inc

ial
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts,
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 
en

titi
es

 
 

St
atu

s r
ep

or
t o

n R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

in 
na

tio
na

l, p
ro

vin
cia

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

me
nt 

  

Su
rve

y c
om

ple
ted

 fo
r p

ub
lic

 en
titi

es
 

31
 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 
 

Th
e s

ur
ve

y w
as

 co
mp

let
ed

 fo
r 3

2 n
ati

on
al 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
(3

 de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
did

 no
t p

ar
tic

ipa
te)

.  
Hi

gh
 le

ve
l o

utc
om

es
 of

 th
e s

ur
ve

y w
er

e 
co

mm
un

ica
ted

 to
 al

l th
e d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts 
via

 bi
lat

er
al 

me
eti

ng
s, 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

or
um

 an
d c

lus
ter

 
me

eti
ng

s. 
 O

utc
om

es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 us

ed
 to

 de
ve

lop
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

s f
or

 N
ati

on
al 

Tr
ea

su
ry 

int
er

ve
nti

on
s 

Pu
bli

c s
ec

tor
 A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e F

or
um

 
Fu

lly
 fu

nc
tio

na
l P

ub
lic

 S
ec

tor
 A

ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e F

or
um

 es
tab

lis
he

d: 
• 

Ag
re

ed
 on

 te
rm

s o
f r

efe
re

nc
e 

for
 th

e f
or

um
 w

ith
 al

l re
lev

an
t 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
• 

Da
tab

as
e o

f o
rie

nta
ted

 
me

mb
er

s m
ain

tai
ne

d 
 Re

vie
w 

eff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f fo
ru

m 
an

d 
re

po
rt 

to 
Di

re
cto

r-G
en

er
al 

on
 

re
fin

em
en

ts 

30
 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
7 

 31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7 

  31
 M

ar
ch

 20
08

 
 

Th
e p

ro
jec

t w
as

 te
mp

or
ar

ily
 su

sp
en

de
d d

ue
 to

 la
ck

 
of 

int
er

es
t fr

om
 cl

ien
t d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts.
 In

 lie
u o

f th
e 

for
ma

l s
tru

ctu
re

 th
e a

ud
it c

om
mi

tte
e i

nd
uc

tio
ns

 
we

re
 in

itia
ted

 

 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n o
n A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
es

 an
d 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
mi

tte
es

 of
 

na
tio

na
l d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n o
n  

Au
dit

 
Co

mm
itte

es
 of

 na
tio

na
l d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts 
10

0%
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

n A
ud

it 
Co

mm
itte

es
 of

 na
tio

na
l d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts,
 

20
%

 in
 pr

ov
inc

ial
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

an
d t

he
 

me
tro

s i
n l

oc
al 

go
ve

rn
me

nt 
by

 31
 

Ma
rch

 20
08

 

10
0%

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n n

ati
on

al 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts.

 A
lso

 
pa

rtic
ipa

ted
 in

 21
%

 of
 pr

ov
inc

ial
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts,

  
5 m

etr
os

 an
d 1

8 o
the

r m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

’ A
ud

it 
Co

mm
itte

es
 

 

National Treasury Part1:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 1 9/18/2008 12:48 PM Page 60



Annual Report 2007/08 61>>

Purpose: Provide specialist policy analysis and advisory services in the areas of
macroeconomics, microeconomics, tax policy, financial and banking sector policy,
regulatory reform, regional integration and international financial relations.

Measurable objective: This programme provides policy advice to promote growth,
employment, macroeconomic stability and regional integration.

There are five subprogrammes:

• Management and Research funds the department’s economic research programme,
including promoting the research capacity of local academic researchers.

• Financial Sector Policy provides policy advice on financial sector issues, and is
responsible for financial sector legislation, regulations and the regulatory framework.
Key strategic focus areas include retirement reform, financial stability and financial
sector transformation.

• Tax Policy provides advice on the formulation of tax policy. It is also responsible for
drafting tax legislation, tax revenue analysis and forecasting.

• International Economics focuses on improving South Africa’s participation in
international economic institutions and debates. It also facilitates the deepening of
South Africa’s role in regional integration such as the Southern African Development
Community (SADC) and South African Customs Union (SACU)) and promoting the
economic objectives of the African Development Bank (ADB) and New Partnership
for Africa’s Development (NEPAD).

• Economic Policy provides macroeconomic, microeconomic, forecasting and
regulatory technical and policy analysis for the annual budget and other government
processes, as well as policy review.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations covers the functions of two
divisions in the National Treasury that were formed during the 2006/07 fiscal year. These
are the Economic Policy division and the Tax, Financial Sector Policy and International
Economics division.  

The work of the two divisions includes macroeconomic and microeconomic analysis and
policy advice, economic forecasting, the management of international financial relations,
tax policy analysis, and financial sector policy advice. These divisions also coordinate
activities with the following institutions:

SIXProgramme 6

ECONOMIC POLICY AND INTERNATIONAL 
FINANCIAL RELATIONS
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(i) South African Reserve Bank (SARB) on the framework and conduct of
macroeconomic policy, supervision and regulation of banking and exchange control, 

(ii) Financial Services Board (FSB) in relation to the regulation of non-banking financial
services, and

(iii) Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) in relation to anti-money-laundering measures
and combating the financing of terrorism.

During the review period a number of significant projects such as the research conducted
over a number of years by the International Growth Advisory Panel (IGAP) and the
successfully completed. The process culminated into highly specialised research on
shared growth, commissioning international and local academics to publish numerous
papers. Ultimately, 19 research papers and 21 recommendations were made to the South
African government on how to accelerate growth. These papers are available on the
National Treasury website. The department also hosted the G20 Ministers and Governors’
meeting chaired by the Minister of Finance and held in Kleinmond. Key issues for
discussion included reform of the Bretton Woods Institutions, commodity cycles and
financial stability, and fiscal elements of growth and development. South Africa also
sought to promote linkages between G20 members and African policymakers by hosting
two seminars immediately preceding the Deputies’ meetings on aid and development in
Africa.

The division together with Asset and Liability Management, co-chaired three standing
committees with SARB on macroeconomics, financial regulations and financial markets.
The division also conducted policy analysis and prepared recommendations for bilateral
meetings between  the Minister of Finance and Governor of the Reserve Bank.

Economic Policy Division 

The Economic Policy division engaged in ongoing research work, advice and
coordination of growth enhancing policies, including in the Accelerated Shared Growth
Initiative of South Africa (AsgiSA) task team and the economic cluster.  Important areas
of work over the past year included:

• Providing analysis and advice on proposed industrial policies
• Public spending on infrastructure
• Review of the Development Finance Institutions
• Economic modelling of Asgisa scenarios
• World Cup and the Gautrain

The division also worked in conjunction with the Public Finance and Asset and Liability
Management divisions to assess and advise on departmental policy proposals and
initiatives of state owned enterprises.  

Macroeconomic modelling and partial equilibrium analyses of wage subsidies were
conducted in support of the ongoing work on a new social security dispensation. Over the
past year the division also worked on finalising an economic analysis of options for a
social health insurance system for the country. The division also worked with the World
Bank on the development of a new component of its computable general equilibrium
model, a microsimulation model that will add analytical depth to the model outputs. 
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A key output of the division remains its work with the Budget Office on the national
budget.  Economic Policy creates the economic forecast for the Medium Term
Expenditure Framework and writes the macroeconomic chapter of the MTBPS and
Budget Review. In the process, the division focuses on the monitoring of various sectors
of the economy and efforts are ongoing to improve that work. In support of fiscal policy,
the division works closely with the Asset and Liability Management division to provide
advice on the reserve accumulation strategy, in line with ongoing assessment of global
and domestic economic conditions.  

Government’s regulatory impact assessment framework has been a critical focus area for
the division in the past year.  Staff have been instrumental in finalising the proposals,
shepherding them through Cabinet, and developing a work programme, institutional
structure and work process proposal between the National Treasury, the Presidency, and
other government departments.  These will be finalised in the fiscal year.  The divisional
structure has been amended to provide for scaling up of analysis. 

Financial Sector Policy and International Economics Division

The Tax Policy unit met its 2007/08 objectives as planned. The unit proposed significant
tax proposals for the 2008 Budget, including a shift of the secondary tax on companies to
a withholding tax on dividends at shareholder level. It also took over responsibility for the
drafting of tax legislation, working closely with the South African Revenue Service
(SARS) on amendments to the Income Tax Act, the Value Added Tax Act and other tax
legislation. Work on the Minerals and Petroleum Resources Royalty Bill continued and
the third draft of the Royalty Bill was published for public comment on 6 December 2007.
Public hearings on this Bill were held by the Portfolio Committee on Finance during
March 2008.  The unit was responsible for tax revenue analysis and the coordination of
tax revenue forecasts for the MTBPS in 2007 and the annual budget in February 2008.
The unit drafted the tax chapter and related annexures of the 2008 Budget Review. Work
on environmental fiscal reform, the use of taxes and incentives to deal with environmental
challenges, such as climate change, is ongoing.  A research paper on the VAT treatment of
merit goods such as books, medicine and medical services was completed in October
2007.

The Financial Sector Policy unit prioritised the regulatory regime and retirement reform,
by focusing on legislative reforms in the banking sector, long-term insurance and the
retirement fund industry.  The unit continued to research technical issues arising from the
February 2007 National Treasury paper entitled “Social Security and Retirement Reform:
Second Discussion Paper”. Much of this work has fed into the Inter-Governmental Task
Team on social security and retirement fund reform. 

During the first quarter of 2008 a draft regulation which introduced new minimum early
termination values and revised dispensation for intermediaries selling long-term
contractual savings products, was released.  The unit also completed research and released
discussion papers on real estate investment trusts and micro-insurance. These will
enhance consumer access, protection and efficiency of the sub-sectors. Research in
exchange controls culminated in significant exchange control announcements in the 2008
Budget, replacing exchange controls on institutional investors with a system of prudential
regulations. 

Programme 6:  Economic Pol icy and Internat ional  Financial  Relat ions
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Efforts to maintain and strengthen financial stability included the implementation of 
Basel II standards of risk management by South African banks, under the supervision of
SARB. During the review period, the Banks Amendment Act was promulgated into law.
This led to the introduction of the Basel II Capital Accord in South Africa from  January
2008.  The adoption of Basel II was timely in light of the instability of banking institutions
in the United States of America, United Kingdom and Europe, and ensured that banks
apply advanced risk management tools, and enable better loss provisioning and capital
allocation.

During the review period, Amendment Bills submitted and approved by Cabinet for
tabling in Parliament include the Financial Services Laws General Amendment Bill and
the Insurance Laws Amendment Bill. The former amends a number of financial sector
laws under the administration of the FSB and SARB, and if signed into law, will see the
establishment of an enforcement committee under the auspices of the FSB. The Insurance
Laws Amendment Bill, seeks to address technical aspects in the Short-term and Long-
term Insurance Acts and will ensure that medical and insurance schemes are demarcated. 

To improve access to finance and banking development, the  Cooperative Banks Act was
passed by Parliament at the end of 2007 and signed into law in February 2008.
Implementation of the Act has begun with preparations for the establishment of a
development agency, which will assist in building capacity in financial services
cooperatives. 

The International Economics unit is responsible for servicing South Africa’s relationship
with multilateral institutions like the World Bank, International Monetary Fund (IMF) and
ADB. South Africa played a key role in negotiations with donor countries to ensure that
their commitments to the African Development Fund and the World Bank’s International
Development Association (IDA) to fund low-income countries were considerably
increased compared to previous rounds. South Africa has demonstrated its commitment to
the Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative by making a once off, upfront payment
contribution. More details are also provided under Programme 9.

South Africa continued to play a key role in promoting regional integration through the
SADC and SACU, including the adoption of the Finance and Investment Protocol by
SADC, and its tabling in Parliament for approval. South Africa strongly supported moves
preparing for the implementation of the free trade area in 2008. Within SACU, South
Africa proposed a review of the revenue-sharing formula, and agreement on the role of
SACU in the light of deeper regional integration in SADC.
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Purpose: Manage three conditional grants to the provincial and local spheres of
government. These conditional grants are in addition to the equitable share allocations
and constitute only three of the many conditional grants administered by national
departments.

Measurable objective: This programme aims to improve the pace and quality of
provincial infrastructure investment and asset maintenance, promote financial
management reforms in municipalities and restructure service delivery in municipalities
with large budgets. 

This programme includes three conditional grants:

• The Infrastructure Grant to Provinces supplements the provinces’ infrastructure
budgets, and is intended to accelerate the building and maintenance of social and
economic infrastructure such as hospitals, clinics, schools, provincial roads and
agricultural infrastructure. The grant also assists provinces in funding labour-
intensive provincial infrastructure projects.

• The Local Government Financial Management Grant provides for restructuring of
large municipalities and the transfer and monitoring of funds for local government
financial management reforms and the progressive implementation of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (MFMA) as part of capacity building efforts to modernise
financial management in municipalities.

• The Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant supports projects that provide
community infrastructure, create platforms for private-sector development and
improve the quality of life of residents in targeted areas. The unit administering this
grant is discussed in Programme 2.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Infrastructure Grant to Provinces is a supplementary grant aimed at accelerating
infrastructure investments at the provincial sphere of government. The grant was
allocated R6.2 billion and was transferred to all provinces with the exception of
Mpumalanga where R137.8 million was withheld from the education and health
departments because of poor infrastructure spending. It was requested that the delayed
money be rolled over to 2008/09 financial year.

The rapid rise in the allocation of the Infrastructure Grant to Provinces has contributed
to high growth in provincial capital budgets. Provincial capital budgets on the Education,
Health and Roads sectors have increased from R14.3 billion in 2006/07 to R17.2 billion

SEVENProgramme 7

PROVINCIAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS
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in 2007/08. This represents a year-on-year nominal growth of 20.3 per cent. The
preliminary (un-audited) total capital expenditure on Education, Health and Roads sectors
amounted to R15.4 billion or 90 per cent in 2007/08.  A significant improvement in
spending trends is notable in four provinces namely Free State, KwaZulu-Natal, Limpopo
and Northern Cape, which spent an average of 100 per cent of their education budgets.
Eastern Cape and Mpumalanga have spent less than 75 per cent of their education capital
budgets, and need to significantly improve their infrastructure delivery management.

The full roll out of the Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) which
started in 2006/07 to support Education and Public Works was extended to health in
2007/08. The IDIP is assisting the departments to improve infrastructure planning,
aligning project planning with budgets, and clarifying roles and responsibilities. This has
contributed to improved working relationships between Public Works and client
departments. 

To implement the IDIP, government recruited and placed technical assistants in
departments to support the institutionalisation of good practices in the management of
infrastructure delivery. The IDIP is expected to influence four key performance areas:

• The development of appropriate capacity for infrastructure planning and delivery
management (people, skills and systems)

• Infrastructure plans that indicate needs,  backlogs and project priorities 

• Contracts or service level agreements that provide clear measures of performance of
implementing agents including the Department of Public Works and contractors 

• Improvement in the quality of information reported on infrastructure projects.

In total, 33 full-time and short term technical assistants were recruited and deployed to 18
departments across the provinces.  Their effect on infrastructure expenditure through
better forward planning is evident in education where spending trends shows that 4th
quarter expenditure was reduced from an average of 35.4 per cent in 2006/07 to 27.2 per
cent in 2007/08, with most provinces showing significant improvement on buildings and
other fixed structure trends except in three provinces.  Most provinces are
institutionalising the IDIP principles that support better forward planning which
effectively aligns plans with budgets. More still needs to be done to ensure that the
capacity to implement the good practises promoted by IDIP is built in the respective
departments. The roll out of IDIP in health started towards the end of 2007/08 with
technical assistants deployed in seven health departments. IDIP in health is currently in
the inception phase of the programme cycle.

The Local Government Financial Management Grant provides for the transfer and
monitoring of funds for local government financial management reforms and the phased
implementation of the MFMA. Growing awareness and implementation of the MFMA
continued, with the transfer of resources to all municipalities to help finalise plans and
implement key areas of the MFMA. The programme also provides for the gearing of
international support and has placed technical advisors in selected municipalities. The
grant spent a total of R145 million in 2007/08.
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The MFMA implementation mainly focused on the review of internal processes,
delegations, implementation plans, changing of past practices, raising awareness among
councillors and officials, budget reforms and community consultation in the larger
municipalities. Lessons learnt from the first three years of implementation will be taken
forward into the smaller municipalities over the medium term. However, much work is
still required to ensure that financial and non-financial reforms remain part of daily
municipal practices. 

Debt disclosure and minimum competencies regulations were published in 2007.  These
facilitate long term borrowing by municipalities for infrastructure development, whilst the
minimum competencies provide for quality skills development in financial management
for municipal officials, supported by guides and review of material to be utilised for
training purposes.  Municipalities also used the grant to sustain the internship programme
and employed 503 graduates from previously disadvantaged backgrounds. Training for
mentors was also introduced to support the internship programme. 

Metropolitan and large municipalities have a significant impact on the regional and
national economy, and need to modernise the manner in which they deliver services,
implement poverty alleviation programmes and promote growth. The demand driven
Local Government Restructuring Grant provides resources to selected municipalities
based on their own restructuring plans. The grant ends in 2008.  The review period saw
closer monitoring of the grant outcomes and finalisation of the programme in some
municipalities. 

Seven municipalities were part of the multi year programme: Buffalo City, Emfuleni and
Mangaung completed their participation in 2006/07, and City of Cape Town, eThekwini,
Tshwane and Nelson Mandela Bay municipality will continue over the medium term to
report on progress.  

Programme 7:  Provincial  and Local  Government Transfers
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Purpose: Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
administers and provides for pension benefits to Special Pensions, Post Retirement
Medical Subsidies, Military Pensions, and other statutory pensions. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure the payment of benefits and
awards to beneficiaries of departments, state-aided entities and other specified bodies in
terms of various statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other commitments. 

There are two subprogrammes:

• Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds provides for the payment of benefits out
of pension and other funds to the beneficiaries of various public-sector bodies in
terms of relevant statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other commitments.
The subprogramme also provides for the payment of special pensions to persons who
have made sacrifices or served the public interest in the establishment of a
democratic constitutional order.

• Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military pension
benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for accepted pensionable
disabilities and medical assistive devices, including specialised procedures. The
unit’s main objective is to pay the correct pension (gratuities and/or annuities) and
medical expense benefits to the correct beneficiaries timeously. The benefits are paid
in terms of the Military Pensions Act (1976) to persons disabled in the course of
military service. The medical officer makes assessments based on information
presented by the specialist (relevant consulting doctor) or reviews assessments where
the disability was aggravated as a result of military service. Compensation or Injury
on Duty pensions are paid in terms of the Compensation for Occupational Injuries
and Diseases Act (1993) to disabled public servants or in case of death to their
dependants, for injuries sustained or diseases contracted during the performance of
their duties. Awards are issued by the Compensation Commissioner for payment
through the GEPF. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

During the review period, a process was initiated to restore good governance and delivery
of services by improving processes and procedures, technology upgrade, appointment of
qualified and skilled officials to critical positions.

Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds includes the payment of post-retirement
medical benefits to medical schemes in respect of civil pensioners, surviving spouses,
dependants and pensioners as provided for in the service conditions of public servants. It

EIGHTProgramme 8

CIVIL AND MILITARY PENSIONS, CONTRIBUTIONS TO
FUNDS AND OTHER BENEFITS
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includes payment of government medical contributions to pensioners and widows of the
former Development Boards and the National Film Board. It also includes recipients
afforded a benefit in terms of a special government concession. 

During 2007/08 the administration paid benefits to about 74 000 beneficiaries through 46
Medical Schemes It also strengthened administrative processes to improve the
reconciliation of claims received from medical schemes. Furthermore the department has
strengthened its management by employing additional staff in critical positions in order
to reduce backlogs on processing new applications. This process will continue in the new
financial year, due to expected increases in benefits and membership. 

Special Pensions forms part of Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds sub-
programme and is paid to persons who have made sacrifices or served the public interest
in the establishment of a democratic constitutional order in our country. The Special
Pensions Act (69 of 1996) gives effect to Section 189 of the Interim Constitution
regarding the prescription of rules for determining persons who are entitled to receive
special pensions and to provide for the establishment of structures to implement the act –
that is, the Special Pensions Board and the Special Pensions Review Board. The Special
Pensions Board was dissolved in February 2007 and the Special Pensions Review Board
was dissolved in May 2007.

During the review period Special Pensions:

• Conducted a national communication campaign raising awareness to its beneficiaries
and other stakeholders about the Special Pensions Amendments (2007). The unit also
embarked on an initiative to form relationships with community based organisations.

• Instituted a comprehensive anti-fraud and data cleansing campaign in cooperation
with the Special Investigation Unit. A report was submitted to National Treasury
during a meeting held at National Treasury with the SIU.

• Implemented administration systems for the new benefits introduced in the Special
Pensions Amendments (2007) to include funeral benefits as well as benefits for
spouses and orphans of deceased members 

• Special Pensions has paid benefits to 6 024 clients

Military Pensions and Other Benefits implemented the following initiatives: 

• Medical treatment is provided through the South African National Defence Force
(SANDF) at military hospitals and sickbays around the country. Although the service
is of great value to military pensioners, internal deficiencies with the provision of
medical treatment detrimentally affect service delivery. The present procedures and
processes are to be investigated in an effort to address deficiencies.   

• The transfer of medical treatment has been completed at military bases in parts of the
country which were of critical concern. The SANDF structure, however, limits the
possible services rendered to pensioners, which resulted in delays in the transfer
process.

• Due to staff constraints, the National Treasury was informed that formal medical
boards could no longer be arranged through military hospitals by the SANDF.  
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• As an interim arrangement and to ensure proper control and management of the
above process, Military Pensions has arranged for the services of the SOMA
Initiative, and appointed a Health Risk Manager of the National Treasury, to form
medical boards in respect of new claims and to review cases on an ad hoc basis. 

• The Injury on Duty section improved its processes for the payment of benefits to its
clients by employing additional resources. It has also successfully administered
increases on time; however there are challenges of process synchronisation with the
Compensation Commission. Relationships with the organisations need to improve in
2008/09 through service level agreements

Programme 8: Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
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Purpose: Fiscal Transfers makes funds available to public authorities and other
institutions in terms of legal provisions governing the financial relations between
government and the relevant authority or institution, including international development
bodies of which South Africa is a member.

Measurable objective: To meet certain international and other statutory financial
obligations, to meet the costs of effectively and efficiently raising revenue for the state,
and to finance intelligence gathering and other secret services in the national interest.

Domestic transfers are made to:

• The South African Revenue Service (SARS), which is responsible for collection of
revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997).

• The Financial and Fiscal Commission, a constitutional body charged with making
recommendations about the equitable division of revenue between the three spheres
of government.

• The Secret Services Account, used to finance the activities of the National
Intelligence Agency, the South African Secret Service, and certain activities of the
Detective Service of the South African Police Service.

• The Financial Intelligence Centre, which combats money laundering and works to
strengthen financial regulation capacity.

To fulfil government’s international obligations, foreign transfer payments are made to:

• The World Bank Group

• The African Development Bank (ADB)

• Member states of the Common Monetary Area Compensation– Lesotho, Namibia
and Swaziland

• The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation

• The Vaccination Fund, in line with an agreement with the Global Alliance for
Vaccines and Immunisation. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Contributions to the World Bank Group: South Africa contributes to the World Bank
Group’s International Development Association (IDA), which is replenished by donors
every three years.  During this period payments were made with respect to resources

NINEProgramme 9

FISCAL TRANSFERS
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pledged during the 13th and 14th replenishments of IDA.  The 15th replenishment of IDA
was negotiated during 2007 and South Africa lobbied for greater carve outs in the key
NEPAD priority areas of peace and security (support for fragile states) and regional
projects and programmes. 

South Africa also played a key role in the donor negotiations towards African
Development Bank Fund’s 11th replenishment, being the only African country donor to
this fund.   This fund provides reduced-interest lending to low-income African countries
in support of poverty alleviation, and to foster economic growth and development.

South Africa has been contributing to ADF replenishments since 1998. During 2007/08 a
final payment of R12,7 million was made towards the 10th replenishment of the ADF, and
most recently, an amount of R77 million was pledged towards ADF-XI, to be paid in three
equal annual instalments beginning in 2008/9 and ending in 2010/11.

Transfers were also made to increase South Africa’s shareholding in the Bank, which
currently stands at just over 4,5 per cent. 

The Common Monetary Area is made up of South Africa, Lesotho, Namibia and
Swaziland. Its purpose is to implement a common monetary policy. South Africa
compensates the other countries for rands circulating in their territories as legal tender in
terms of Article 6 of the Multilateral Monetary Agreement. The compensation is based on
the understanding that South Africa, as the issuing country, benefits from this through
seigniorage collection. In 2007/08, R327 million was transferred for this purpose.

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation (CFTC) resources are used to further the
Commonwealth Secretariat’s goals and programmes, which are closely aligned to the
Millennium Development Goals. The primary objective of the fund is to assist developing
member countries to acquire the knowledge and institutional capacity needed to address
their development priorities. Public sector development is a central theme within fund-
sponsored activities. The CFTC provides funding to mostly technical advisors, and
funding or scholarships for workshops, seminars, study tours and study programmes.
South Africa contributed £236,470 during the review period. 

During the period under review CFTC provided support for the first African Policy
Seminar on Aid Effectiveness that was held back to back with the G20 meeting in March
2007. This Seminar was a critical step in preparations by a wide range of partners
countries for the next High Level Forum on Aid Effectiveness in Ghana 2008.

South Africa acceded to the International Financial Facility for Immunisation (IFFIm) in
early 2007, and the first payment of R7.218 million was made in March 2007.  This
binding pledge to provide the IFFIm with US$ 1m a year for the next 20 years enables the
IFFIm to frontload the provision of development resources in areas of critical concern.
The IFFIm's financial resources are made available to the Global Alliance for
Vaccinations and Immunisation in support of healthcare, particularly the provision of
vaccines in order to reduce the number of vaccine-preventable deaths among children
under the age of five. 
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Transfer payments

Name of institution R'000
African Development Bank and African 
Development Fund 76 945 
Commonwealth Fund for Tech Co-operation 3 434 
Common Monetary Area Compensation  320 597 
Development Bank of Southern Africa  
[Siyenza Manje]           168 890 
Development Bank of Southern Africa  
[Financial Management Grant] 53 407
Financial and Fiscal Commission  27 497 
Financial Intelligence Centre 42 480
Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation 7 363 
Investment Climate Facility 6 765
Secret Services  2 584 240 
South African Revenue Service  5 511 031 
World Bank Group and IDA 86 641 

Total: 8 889 290 

Programme 9: Fiscal Transfers
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Report of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2008.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and has met as reflect-
ed below, in line with its approved terms of reference.

Audit Committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from
section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. Furthermore the Audit
Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee
charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all
its responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

TheAudit Committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given
by management, the internal auditors, and discussions with the independent external
auditor on the results of its audits, that the internal accounting controls are operating to
ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the annual financial
statements, and accountability for assets and liabilities is maintained.

SITA is responsible for the Wide Area Network (WAN), security and other controls sur-
rounding this area, including e.g. firewalls for National Treasury. The Auditor-General

*Includes one (1) special meeting.

Audit Committee Meetings 2008

Name of member Number* of meetings attended

Mr Ignatius Sehoole (Chairperson) 5 of 5

Prof Carolina Koornhof 3 of 5

Ms Joyce Matlala 2 of 5

Ms Matsotso Vuso 3 of 4

Ms Mamoroke Lehobye – appointed 9 October 2007 3 of 3

Ms Lesibana Fosu – appointed 9 October 2007 3 of 3
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audits this area and provides assurance to the Audit Committee of SITA only. We are
therefore unable to express an opinion on the IT controls as they relate to SITA and
SITA's functions at National Treasury.

Other than these matters nothing significant has come to the attention of the Audit
Committee to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls,
procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has evaluated the annual financial statements of the National
Treasury for the year ended 31 March 2008 and, based on the information provided to
the Audit Committee, concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the
annual financial statements, and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial
statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008
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Ignatius Sehoole

Chairperson: Audit Committee

Date: 14 August 2008
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the
Republic of South Africa.

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

1.1 Strategic overview and key policy developments

As depicted in the Department’s Strategic Plan and Estimates of National
Expenditure, National Treasury’s strategic direction is informed by five exter-
nal strategic focus areas, namely, promoting sustainable economic growth and
work opportunities, reducing poverty, ensuring good governance and account-
ability, promoting optimal allocation and utilisation of financial resources in
all spheres of government and maintaining macroeconomic stability.
Furthermore, the aforementioned strategic direction is augmented by four
internal strategic priorities: improving co-ordination and communication,
matching resources to workloads, developing human resources strategies to
address attraction and retention challenges and developing management skills.

For a more detailed discussion on the outcomes of the aforementioned strate-
gic activities, please refer to the relevant chapters dealing with programme
performance included in the Annual Report.

1.2 Annual appropriation and vote structure

The total appropriation for National Treasury for the year ended 31 March
2008 amounted to R19.748 million (2006/07: R16.730 million). Programmes
1 to 6 constitute National Treasury’s operational budget which amounted to
R992 million (2006/07: R860 million). The operational budget comprised of
R294 million (2006/07: R255 million) for compensation of employees,
R666 million (2006/07: R584 million) for goods and services and
R32 million (2006/07: R21 million) for the acquisition of capital assets.

The remaining budget of R18.695 million (2006/07: R15.826 million) falls
under programmes 7, 8 and 9 and included transfers to provinces, municipal-
ities, departmental agencies, foreign institutions and payments of post
retirement benefits for a specific category of former employees and members
of liberation movements.

National Treasury<<82
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1.3 Programme structure

National Treasury’s Vote comprises nine programmes: Administration, Public
Finance and Budget Management, Asset and Liability Management,
Financial Management and Systems, Financial Accounting and Reporting,
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations, Provincial and Local
Government Transfers, Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds
and Other Benefits and Fiscal Transfers.

Administration provides strategic management and administrative support to
the National Treasury, giving managerial leadership to the work of the
Department. The Administration programme comprises the Minister, Deputy
Minister, Management and Corporate Services.

The total appropriation for this Programme amounted to R202 million
(2006/07: R173 million). Expenditure for Administration totalled
R178 million (2006/07: R162 million).

Public Finance and Budget Management provides analysis and advice on fis-
cal policy and public finances, intergovernmental financial relations and
expenditure planning and priorities. This programme also manages the gov-
ernment’s annual budget process and provides public finance management
support. These functions are organised into four separate subprogrammes:
Public Finance, Budget Office, Intergovernmental Relations and Technical
and Management Support.

The total adjusted appropriation for this Programme amounted to
R224 million (2006/07: R158 million). Current expenditure incurred totalled
R206 million (2006/07: R132 million) and comprised of compensation of
employees R90 million (2006/07: R72 million) and goods and services
R115 million (2006/07: R58 million).

Asset and Liability Management manages government’s financial assets and
liabilities. There are five subprogrammes: Management, Asset Management,
Liability Management, Financial Operations and Strategy and Risk
Management.

The total appropriation amounted to R76 million (2006/07: R59 million).

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Total expenditure incurred by Asset and Liability Management amounted to
R58 million (2006/07: R41 million), an increase of 40 per cent.

Financial Management and Systemsmanages and regulates government's sup-
ply chain processes, implements and maintains standardised financial systems
and co-ordinates the implementation of the Public Finance Management Act
(1999) and related capacity-building initiatives. This Programme consists of
three subprogrammes: Supply Chain Management, PFMA Implementation
and Coordination, and Financial Systems.

The total adjusted appropriation for this Programme amounted to
R340 million (2006/07: R363 million). The total expenditure incurred
amounted to R268 million (2006/07: R196 million). The biggest expenditure
incurred by this Programme relates to professional service providers for main-
taining the transversal systems.

Financial Accounting and Reporting promotes and enforces transparency and
effective management in respect of the revenue, expenditure, assets and liabil-
ities of departments, public entities, constitutional institutions and local gov-
ernment, thus facilitating accountability and governance. The Programme
consists of six subprogrammes: Financial Reporting for National Accounts,
Financial Management Improvement, Investment of Public Monies, Service
Charges (Commercial Banks), Audit Statutory Bodies and Contingent
Liabilities: Reinsurance Liabilities.

The total appropriation for this Programme amounted to R102 million
(2006/07: R76 million) and consisted of an operational budget of R55 million
(2006/07: R45 million) and transfers of R47 million (2006/07: R28 million).
The total expenditure incurred by Financial Accounting and Reporting
amounted to R99 million (2006/07: R66 million), an increase of R33 million.
Virement amounting to R8 million was applied to provide for unforeseen
expenditure pertaining to the hosting of the Eastern and Southern African
Accountants–General (ESAAG) Conference in Durban.

In addition, this Programme is responsible for transfer payments to the
Auditor-General in terms of the Public Audit Act (2004) whereby National
Treasury is obliged to pay audit costs in respect of the auditing of statutory
bodies for any financial year concerned, where such costs exceed one per cent

National Treasury<<84
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of the total expenditure of such bodies. Expenditure concerning the transfer
of audit costs amounted to R24 million (2006/07: R12 million). This increase
is attributable to more claims being submitted for reimbursement by the
Auditor-General.

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations provides specialist
policy analysis and advisory services in the areas of macroeconomics, micro-
economics, financial sector, taxation, regulatory reform, tax policies, regional
integration and international financial relations. The Programme comprises of
five subprogrammes namely: Management and Research, Financial Sector
Policy, Tax Policy, International Economics and Economic Policy.

The total appropriation for this Programme amounted to R109 million
(2006/07: R75 million). Current expenditure incurred totalled R93 million
(2006/07: R69 million) and comprised of compensation of employees R37
million (2006/07: R31 million) and goods and services R53 million (2006/07:
R33 million).

Provincial and Local Government Transfersmanages conditional grants to the
provincial and local spheres of government. Conditional grants transferred
directly to provinces and municipalities from National Treasury’s Vote
amounted to R6.276 million (2006/07: R4.984 billion) and R717 million
(2006/07: R514 million) respectively.

Details of these transfers are provided under annexures 1A to 1E. These trans-
fers exclude the equitable share grants to provinces and municipalities, and
also exclude conditional grants to provincial and local government made by
other national departments.

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits pro-
vides for pension and post-retirement medical benefit obligations to former
employees of state departments and bodies, and for similar benefits to retired
members of the military. The final appropriation for this Programme amount-
ed to R2.238 million (2006/07: R2.189 billion).

Expenditure for the period under review amounted to R2.177 million
(2006/07: R2.049 million) which comprised of current expenditure of
R1.362 million (2006/07: R1.249 million) and injury on duty, special and
other miscellaneous pension payments of R810 million (2006/07: R796 mil-
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lion). A saving/underspending of R62 million (2006/07: R140 million) was
recorded against this Programme.

Fiscal Transfers makes funds available to other countries and multilateral and
domestic institutions and public entities, including international development
institutions of which South Africa is a member.

Domestic transfers are made to the South African Revenue Service, Financial
Intelligence Centre and the Financial and Fiscal Commission for the fulfil-
ment of their statutory obligations, and to the Development Bank of Southern
Africa for the Siyenza Manje Project. In addition, funds are also paid to aug-
ment the Secret Services Account. Domestic transfers accounted for 93 per
cent of the total transfers allocated to the Fiscal Transfer Programme and
amounted to R8.444 million (2006/07: R7.463 million), of which the largest
transfers went to the South African Revenue Service and Secret Services
totalling R8.095 million (2006/07: R7.098 million).

Foreign transfer payments have been provided for:
• The World Bank Group;
• The African Development Bank (ADB);
• Common Monetary Area Compensation to Lesotho, Namibia and

Swaziland;
• The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Co-operation;
• Investment Climate Facility; and
• Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation.

The total foreign transfers made by National Treasury amounted to
R502 million (2006/07: R575 million) of which the transfer to Lesotho,
Namibia and Swaziland makes up the largest portion of foreign transfers
totalling R321 million (2006/07: R283 million).

Included in the aforementioned amounts, virement amounting to R45 million
has been applied to provide for increases in transfer payments to the Financial
and Fiscal Commission (FFC), the World Bank’s International Development
Association (IDA) and the Commonwealth Fund for Technical Co-operation
(CFTC) which is mainly attributable to fluctuating exchange rates. It needs to
be noted that foreign transfers exclude the larger South African Customs
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Union interim payments, which are deducted directly from the National
Revenue Fund.

For more details on the Vote structures, annual appropriation and summarised
explanations for variances please refer to the Appropriation Statement and
related notes thereto.

1.4 Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue received during the reporting period amounted to
R5.096 million (2006/07: R4.720 million) and consisted of sales of goods and
services of R45 million, interest and dividends of R4.884 million and other
recoveries amounting to R166 million.

For more details on departmental revenue, please refer to Note 2 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

1.5 Utilisation of donor funds

Local and foreign assistance received in cash during the year amounted
to R13 million (2006/07: R6 million) relating to various projects. Expenditure
incurred amounted to R12 million (2006/07: R8 million).

Furthermore, National Treasury transferred funds to external spending agen-
cies amounting to R7 million (2006/07: R26 million) on behalf of the Recon-
struction and Development Fund. These amounts are not reflected in the
Statement of Financial Performance due to National Treasury only acting as a
conduit for those funds.

1.6 Events after the reporting date

Payments to the value of R61 million (2006/07: R66 million) were processed
during April and May 2008, which relate to the 2007/08 financial year. These
payments were not included in the financial statements for the 2007/08 finan-
cial year, which were prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting.

Departmental revenue amounting to R394 million (2006/07 R353 million)
was received by National Treasury after year end and subsequently
transferred to the National Revenue Fund. Refer to Note 21 and 24.
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2. Services rendered by the department

National Treasury’s core business relates to the formulation of fiscal and
financial policies, servicing organs of the State in all three spheres of govern-
ment and foreign multilateral and national institutions. National Treasury is
therefore not a service delivery department and does not render any services
in the public domain on a recoverable basis.

3. Capacity constraints

One of the major challenges that persisted during the year under review has
been the reduction of vacancies as a result of the difficulty in retaining scarce
skills. The Department has developed a plan to reduce its vacancy rate and has
set up a talent management programme that includes the internship and talent
pool.

In addition to the above, and to build financial management in Government,
the Department also implemented the Training Outside Public Practice
(TOPP) programme.

4. Trading and Public entities

4.1 Trading entity

Project Development Facility

The Project Development Facility (PDF) is a single function trading entity in
the National Treasury’s Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit, created in
accordance with the PFMA. It was created to assist national, provincial and
municipal spheres of government to pay for services provided by consultants
(transaction advisors) to conduct feasibility studies for PPP projects.

After the financial close of the PPP, the funds are recovered from the success-
ful private party bidder, allowing the PDF to fund further projects. The PDF
also disburses technical assistance funds for municipalities wishing to access
capital grants from the Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant.

4.2 Public entities and business enterprises reporting to the Minister
of Finance

The Minister of Finance is responsible for several entities. These entities are
as follows:National Treasury<<88
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The Development Bank of Southern Africa (Schedule 2: Major public
entity)

The Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) was established in 1983
to perform a broad economic development function within the prevailing dis-
pensation of the homelands. It was reconstituted in terms of the Development
Bank of Southern Africa Act (1997) as a development finance institution with
the primary purpose of promoting economic development and growth, devel-
oping human resources and building institutional capacity. It does this by
mobilising financial and other resources from the national and international
private and public sectors for sustainable development projects and pro-
grammes.

South African Revenue Service (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The SouthAfrican Revenue Service (SARS) is mandated by legislation to col-
lect revenues that are due, ensure maximum compliance with legislation, and
provide a customs service to maximise revenue collection, protect the borders
and facilitate trade.

Financial Services Board (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Financial Services Board (FSB) is a statutory body established in terms
of the Financial Services Board Act (1990). It supervises and regulates the
non-banking financial services industry: long term and short term insurance,
retirement funds and friendly societies, financial service providers, collective
investment schemes and capital markets.

The FSB is responsible for ensuring that the regulated entities comply with the
legislation and with capital adequacy requirements, thus promoting the finan-
cial soundness of these entities and protecting the investing community.

With the introduction of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary ServicesAct
(2004) (FAIS), the mandate of the FSB was expanded to include aspects of
market conduct in both the banking and non-banking financial services indus-
tries. In addition, the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001) (FICA) has
added another dimension to the jurisdiction of the FSB. Amendments to FICA
are currently being finalised to clarify the regulatory responsibilities of
monitoring the provisions on compliance with anti-money laundering and
combating the financing of terrorism.
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The FSB also advises the Minister of Finance through various expert and rep-
resentative advisory committees comprising industry experts. A further func-
tion of the FSB is to promote programmes and initiatives by financial institu-
tions and bodies representing the financial services industry to inform and
educate users and potential users of financial products and services.

Financial Intelligence Centre (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) was established in terms of the
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001) and operates as a separate state
agency. The core mandate of the FIC is to process, analyse and interpret infor-
mation disclosed to it by accountable institutions in the private sector. The FIC
analyses the information and thereafter makes referrals to law enforcement
authorities, intelligence services and SARS for investigation and prosecution
if necessary.

Accounting Standards Board (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Accounting Standards Board (ASB), established in 2002 in accordance
with the PFMA, is responsible for setting the accounting standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) in government. The ASB
sets standards and guidelines for financial statements as required by Section
216(a) of the Constitution.

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (Schedule 3A: National
public entity)

The Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) was established in
terms of Section 3 of the Auditing Profession Act (2005), and came into effect
in April 2006. The goal of the IRBA is to protect the public that relies on the
services of registered auditors and to support registered auditors. The board
has strategic influence in the financial services regulatory environment.

SASRIA Limited (Schedule 3B: National government business
enterprise)

SASRIA Limited was established in terms of the Conversion of SASRIAAct
(1998) and is a short-term insurance company that provides cover for damages
caused by politically malicious acts, riots, strikes and public disorders.
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Public Investment Corporation Limited (Schedule 3B: National
government business enterprise)

The Public Investment Corporation (PIC) is a corporate body governed in
terms of the Public Investment CorporationAct (2004). The PIC invests funds
on behalf of the South African public sector. There are currently 40 entities or
clients whose funds are managed by the PIC. Major clients include the
Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF), the Unemployment Insurance
Fund (UIF), the Associated Institutions Pension Fund (AIPF), the
Compensation Commissioner: Pension Fund (CC:PF), the Compensation
Fund (CF) and the Guardian’s Fund.

5. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made

Funds to public entities and other institutions in terms of various legal provi-
sions governing financial relations between Government and those institutions
are made available on the Fiscal Transfers Programme. Kindly refer to annex-
ures 1F, G and H.

In addition to the Fiscal Transfers Programme, funds for the Project
Development Facility and Accounting Standards Board have been provided
for under programmes 2 and 5 respectively.

6. Corporate governance arrangements

6.1 Internal Audit Function

Since the establishment of the co-sourced Internal Audit Function (IAF) with-
in the National Treasury during 2006, the function has been mainly involved
with establishing itself within the organisation as a result of the assessment
which indicated that there is a definite need to have a more focused, client
centric, and experienced IAF for the National Treasury. In line with this
assessment, the unit conducted an International Benchmarking study with the
Canadian and Australian Treasuries with the aim of improving efficiencies
within the unit and to align the unit with best practice, future demands and the
broader strategic requirements of the National Treasury.

The output of the benchmarking study is the unit’s strategic plan that has been
developed together with the supporting structure to grow the unit. These have
been tabled, recommended by the Audit Committee and accordingly approved
by the Accounting Officer. Furthermore, the co-sourced service provider’s
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contract has been extended for a further two years to allow access to scarce
internal audit skills and to ensure a smooth transition to a fully in-house IAF
by the end of the contract period.

The IAF successfully achieved a hundred percent completion of their Annual
Audit Plan for the period under review, in addition to ad hoc and unscheduled
client requests. All findings were reported to the Audit Committee. The Unit
also undertook a voluntary External Quality Review taking into consideration
that the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) requires an IAF that has been in
existence for 5 years to conduct an external review.Although the unit has been
in existence for a period under two years, there were no areas of non-compli-
ance identified by the review.

6.2 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (AC) operates within written terms of reference which
are reviewed annually. The AC met six times during the year including two
special meetings. A 360 degree review of the committee, which includes eval-
uation by self, management, the IAF and the Auditor-General, was conducted
and no significant areas of concern were indicated. Furthermore, a plan was
put in place by the committee for areas of improvement.

As per the terms of reference, theAC assessed the performance of the IAF and
the performance of the Chief Director: IAF was reviewed by the Accounting
Officer and the AC Chairperson, in consultation with the AC members.

6.3 Risk management

After the resignation of the former chairperson of the Risk Management
Committee (RMC), a new chairperson was appointed on 9 October 2007. In
the interim, the risk management function is being facilitated by the office of
the Chief Financial Officer. The following milestones were achieved:

• Reviewed the RMC Terms of Reference;
• Reviewed the RMC Strategy;
• Reviewed the RMS process and procedures;
• Reviewed the fraud prevention and anti-corruption plan; and
• Enhanced the Risk Register.

. Additional to the aforementioned activities was the establishment of a Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) position on the organisational structure of the
Department. The incumbent of this position will be required to oversee andNational Treasury<<92
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manage the risk management activities of the Department. Efforts are current-
ly underway to fill this position.

6.4 Internal policy review

During the 2007/08 financial year, the Governance Review Committee (GRC)
reviewed, amended and approved 11 departmental policies for implementa-
tion and final approval by the Accounting Officer.

These policies are as follows:

• Subsistence and travel;
• Publications and reading material;
• Memberships to professional bodies;
• Gifts, donations and sponsorships by the Department;
• Gifts, donations and sponsorships by employees;
• Petty cash facility;
• Delegations (sections 10 and 44 of the PFMA and regulations);
• Delegations (Public Service Act and related regulations);
• Parking facilities; and
• TOPP policy.

As governance systems continuously evolve, National Treasury’s policies,
prescripts and related business processes are reviewed regularly to ensure
compliance with statutory requirements and best practice. In addition to the
above, the GRC Terms of Reference have been reviewed by the members and
will be submitted for final approval by the Accounting Officer during second
quarter of the 2008/09 financial year.

6.5 Other governance matters

In addition to the above-mentioned governance arrangements, the following
governance structures have been complied with or have been attended to:

• Fully implemented and applied the business processes designed in the
previous financial period for all Corporate Services business units;

• Established a fully functional Bid Adjudication Committee;
• Systems are in place to ensure:

- The effective, efficient, economical and transparent use of the depart-
mental resources;

- Proper management, administration, safeguarding and maintenance of
the Department’s assets and liabilities;
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• Complied with all tax, levy, duty, pension and audit commitments as
required by the relevant statutes and regulations;

• Settled contractual obligations and paid outstanding amounts owing,
including intergovernmental claims, within the prescribed or agreed peri-
od, except where discrepancies have been identified or circumstances
beyond reasonable control have prevented the timely processing and final-
isation of such payments;

• Complied with the provision of the Division of Revenue Act (2007), prior
to transferring funds to provincial or local governments and ensured that
all funds transferred to provinces and municipalities were paid to their pri-
mary bank accounts;

• Obtained written assurances from all entities confirming that those entities
have implemented effective, efficient and transparent financial manage-
ment and internal control systems prior to funds being transferred to those
entities; and

• Submitted all required reports to the relevant authorities.

7. Discontinued departmental activities

G20 Secretariat

During 2007, National Treasury together with the South African Reserve
Bank, successfully hosted the G20 meetings at which finance ministers,
central bank governors and their deputies engaged on reforms. This initiative
has been completed successfully.

8. New departmental activities

Technical Assistance Unit (trading entity)

The Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) is a facility that was established in 2001
in National Treasury and will operate as a trading entity in the new financial
year. The TAU trading entity will play a major role in the fields of legislation,
institutional and municipal operation and capacity building by ensuring that
prudent financial and project management is implemented throughout nation-
al, provincial and local government. The TAU will be funded though a trans-
fer payment appropriated on National Treasury’s Vote which will be reviewed
with the finalisation of a cost recovery plan.
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University of Pretoria (Programme 2: Public Finance and Budget
Management)

South Africa will be hosting the Annual Congress of the International Institute
of Public Finance in 2009. This will be facilitated by the University of Pretoria
and the Department will provide financial support, inputs in the theme of the
congress and high level support by joining the steering committee of the proj-
ect.

Co-operative Banks for Development Agency (public entity unlisted)

The Co-operative Banks for DevelopmentAgency (CBDA) was established in
terms of the Co-operative Banks Act (2007) and will be operational from 1
April 2008. The objectives of the CBDA are to provide for the registration, as
co-operative banks, of deposit-taking financial services co-operatives, savings
and credit co-operatives, community banks and village banks, and the regula-
tion and supervision of these banks. The CBDA will also facilitate, promote
and fund the education and training of co-operative banks.

Annual Bank Conference on Development Economics (ABCDE)

In June 2008, National Treasury will be hosting the World Bank’s ABCDE
conference with the theme “People, Politics and Globalisation”. The confer-
ence will focus on three broad themes: Globalisation, Investment and Growth;
Human Development for Equitable Growth; and Political Economy of Shared
Growth.

9. Asset management

In addition to the normal day-to-day administration and management of
National Treasury's Asset Register, the Department's Asset Management Unit
identified and undertook several key initiatives to improve on the overall asset
management environment of the Department. These activities are as follows:

9.1 Asset administration and verification

The Department tags and accounts for all departmental assets including finan-
cial values upon acquisition and/or as soon as an asset has been assembled
fully. In order to control asset movements, all movements are supported by an
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Asset Movement Form which is duly approved by the authorised official prior
to assets being moved.

The Department annually verifies the existence of all departmental assets to
enable the Financial Management chief directorate to accurately report on the
condition of departmental assets to management and in the annual financial
statements.

9.2 Asset Management Strategy

During the 2007/08 financial year, the Asset Management Unit commenced
with the implementation of the Asset Management Strategy. The following
activities have been identified as part of the strategy and were successfully
completed and implemented:
• The asset management policies have been reviewed and updated;
• An asset management solution to enhance the asset management activities

has been sourced;
• Roles and responsibilities of all stakeholders have been defined and docu-

mented;
• The service level agreement between the Department and Corporate

Services division has been revisited, enhanced and implemented;
• Acquisition and maintenance plans to ensure compliance with the applica-

ble norms and standards have been developed; and
• The Asset Management unit’s human resources requirements were

reviewed to ensure that the various asset management activities are prop-
erly executed.

10. Performance information

Divisional heads have reported to the Director-General on a regular basis on
the progress made with regards to the programme delivery and measurable
objectives, as contained in National Treasury’s Strategic Plan.

11. SCOPA resolutions

There were no new SCOPA resolutions relating to National Treasury from
prior financial periods.

12. Prior modifications to audit reports

No matters of significance were reported on by the Auditor-General regarding
the Department’s administration. Those minor housekeeping matters high-
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lighted in the Management Letter were addressed and the required control
processes implemented to prevent the reoccurrence of those matters.

However, those weaknesses raised by the Auditor-General pertaining to the
general controls in the information technology environment have been
reviewed and mechanisms are being developed to mitigate those control
weaknesses.

13. Acknowledgements

I would like to express my appreciation to all the members of staff for their
continued dedication, commitment and hard work in ensuring the proper exe-
cution of National Treasury’s mandate.

Approval

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 104 to 197 have been approved by
the Accounting Officer.

LESETJA KGANYAGO
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
DATE: 30 MAY 2008
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
VOTE 8 - NATIONAL TREASURY
for the year ended 31 March 2008

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Treasury
which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2008, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the accounting
officer’s report, as set out on pages 104 to 179.

Responsibility of the accounting officer for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis deter-
mined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 and in
the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA).

3. This responsibility includes:
• designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

• selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
• making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

4. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit.

5. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards onAuditing
and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No.
31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance on
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.

7. An audit also includes evaluating the:
• appropriateness of accounting policies used
• reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management
• overall presentation of the financial statements.

8. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis of accounting

9. The department’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the modified cash
basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury and set out in account-
ing policy note 1.1.

Opinion

10. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the National Treasury as at 31 March 2008 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set
out in accounting policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by the PFMA.

OTHER MATTERS

Without qualifying my audit opinion, I draw attention to the following matters
that relate to my responsibilities in the audit of the financial statements:
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Matters of governance

11. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities con-
cerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of certain key governance responsibilities,
which I have assessed as follows:

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12. Annexure 1A (Statement of Conditional Grants (Infrastructure) Paid to
Provinces), Annexure 1B (Statement of Conditional Grants (Financial
Management) Paid to Municipalities) and Annexure 1C (Statement of
Conditional Grants (Restructuring) Paid to Municipalities) include a column of
amounts spent by the provinces and the municipalities. I have not audited these
amounts and accordingly I do not express an opinion thereon.
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Matter of governance Yes No

Audit committee

• The department had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. X
• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of
reference. X

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out
in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 X

Internal audit
• The department had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial
year. X

• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. X
• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as
set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2 X

Other matters of governance
• The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated
deadlines (section 40 of the PFMA). X

• The financial statements submitted for auditing were not subject to any material
amendments resulting from the audit. X

• No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or
the unavailability of expected information and/or the unavailability of senior
management.

X

• The prior year's external audit recommendations have been substantially
implemented. X
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OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

13. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 18-19, 33-40,
44-47, 52-53, 57-60, 65-66, 70 and 74.

Responsibility of the accounting officer for the performance information

14. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required by section
40(3)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and audited financial
statements fairly present the performance against predetermined objectives of
the department.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

15. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with
General Notice 616 of 2008, issued inGovernment Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May
2008.

16. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an
audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance
information and related systems, processes and procedures. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement.

17. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to report
that no significant findings have been identified as a result of my review.

OTHER REPORTS

Investigations

18. During the audit of the National Treasury, it has come to my attention that an
investigation was undertaken by the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) in terms
of a service level agreement between the National Treasury and the SIU that was
still ongoing. The extent of the possible fraud allegations cannot as yet be
assessed. The management of the National Treasury was unable to provide a
conclusive opinion on the possible outcome of the investigation as it was still in
progress at the date of this audit report. However, such an outcome may expose

National Treasury<<102
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TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
VOTE 8 - NATIONAL TREASURY (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2008

a contravention of the Special Pensions Act, 1996 (Act No. 69 of 1996). This
investigation may result in additional costs being incurred by the National
Treasury.

APPRECIATION

19. The assistance rendered by the staff of the National Treasury during the audit is
sincerely appreciated.

Annual Report 2007/08 103>>

Pretoria
31 July 2008

Report of the Auditor-General
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The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies,
which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.
However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed
to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (1999) (as amended by Act 29 of
1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Act and the Division of
Revenue Act (2007).

1. Presentation of the financial statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of
accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes
the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.
Under the cash basis of accounting, transactions and other events are recog-
nised when cash is received or paid.

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand
(R), which is also the functional currency of the Department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest
one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year's
financial statements. Where necessary, figures included in the prior period
financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which
the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year's
financial statements.

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major clas-
sification of expenditure is included in the Appropriation Statement.
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2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments to the appropriated funds made
in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial
records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue
Fund. Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial
year are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the National Revenue Fund when
received, unless otherwise stated. Amounts owing to the National Revenue
Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes
to the Financial Statements.

2.2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of services
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is
received.

2.2.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines, penalties and forfeits are compulsory unrequited amounts which were
imposed by a court or quasi-judicial body and collected by the Department.
Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is received.

2.2.3 Interest and dividends

Interest and dividends are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the cash is received.

Accounting Policies
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2.2.4 Sale of capital assets

The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance when the cash is received.

2.2.5 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees and pub-
lic corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue in the Statement
of Financial Performance on receipt of the funds.

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire before being banked
are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when the
cheque becomes stale. When the cheque is reissued the payment is made from
Revenue.

Forex gains are recognised on payment of funds.

2.2.6 Transfers received (including donations and sponsorships)

All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the National Revenue
Fund and recorded as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when
received. Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclo-
sure notes to the Financial Statements.

All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in an
annexure to the Financial Statements.

2.3 Direct exchequer receipts

All direct exchequer fund receipts are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the cash is received.

2.4 Local and foreign aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance is recognised as revenue when notification of
the assistance is received from the National Treasury or when the Department
directly receives the cash from the donor(s).

All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance is disclosed at fair value in the
annexures to the Financial Statements.
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The cash payments made during the year relating to local and foreign aid assis-
tance projects are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance. The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of the
funds is recognised as a receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using local and foreign aid assistance and
any unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees (including leave entitle-
ments, thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses). Salaries are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when final authorisa-
tion for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each
year).

All other payments are classified as current expense.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the Financial Statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or Position.

Salaries comprise payments to employees. Salaries are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when the payment is effect-
ed on the system. Capitalised compensation forms part of the Capital expen-
diture in the Statement of Financial Performance.

All other payments are classified as current expense.

3.1.2 Post retirement benefits

The Department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits) for certain
employees through a defined benefit plan for government employees. These
benefits are funded by both employer and employee contributions.

Accounting Policies
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Employer contributions (i.e. social contributions) to the fund are expensed
when the final authorisation for payment to the fund is effected on the system
(by no later than 31 March of each year). No provision is made for retirement
benefits in the financial statements of the Department. Any potential liabilities
are disclosed in the Financial Statements of the National Revenue Fund and not
in the Financial Statements of the employer Department.

The Department provides medical benefits for certain employees. Employer
contributions to the medical funds are expensed when final authorisation for
payment to the fund is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

3.1.3 Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Financial Performance as a transfer (to households) when
the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

3.1.4 Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Financial Performance as a transfer (to house-
holds) when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by
no later than 31 March of each year).

Long-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the Financial Statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or Position.

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment
is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). The
expense is classified as capital if the goods and services were used for a capi-
tal project or an asset of R5000 or more is purchased. All assets costing less
than R5000 will also be reflected under goods and services.
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3.3 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written off are
limited to the amount of savings and/or underspending of appropriated funds.
The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is
made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as a disclosure note.

Forex losses are recognised on payment of funds.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the
recognition thereof.

3.4 Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the
Statement of Financial Position until such time as the expenditure is either
approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or
written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the unauthorised expenditure is
approved and the related funds are received. Where the amount is approved
without funding it is recognised as expenditure, subject to availability of sav-
ings, in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of approval.

. 3.5 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an asset in the Statement of
Financial Position until such time as the expenditure is recovered from the
responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

3.6 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of
Financial Performance. If the expenditure is not condoned by the relevant
authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecov-
erable.

3.7 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authorisa-

Accounting Policies
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tion for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each
year).

3.8 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected
on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents com-
prise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments
and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Other financial assets

Other financial assets are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

4.3 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position when the payments are made. Pre-payments and advances outstand-
ing at the end of the year are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost.

4.4 Receivables

Receivables included in the Statement of Financial Position arise from cash
payments made that are recoverable from another party.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost.

4.5 Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the Statement of Financial
Position. Any cash flows such as dividends received or proceeds from the sale
of the investment are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the cash is received.
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Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the investment may be impaired. Any loss is
included in the disclosure notes.

4.6 Loans

Loans are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the nominal
amount when cash is paid to the beneficiary. Loan lances are reduced when
cash repayments are received from the beneficiary.

Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

Loans that are outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost.

4.7 Inventory

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the
notes.

4.8 Capital assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is
defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined
accurately, the capital asset should be stated at fair value. Where fair value can-
not be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

Disclosure Note 28 reflects the total movement in the Asset Register for the
current financial year.

5. Liabilities

5.1 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue
Fund. Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial
year are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

5.2 Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year
are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

Accounting Policies
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5.3 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmen-
tal entities. These payables are recognised at historical cost in the Statement of
Financial Position.

5.4 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a
liability or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance but are
included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liabili-
ty or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance but are includ-
ed in the disclosure notes.

5.7 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the Financial Statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or the Statement of Financial Position.

5.8 Lease commitments

Lease commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
as a liability or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance but
are included in the disclosure notes.

Operating and finance lease commitments are expensed when the payments are
made. Assets acquired in terms of finance lease agreements are disclosed in the
annexures and disclosure notes to the Financial Statements.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue

Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to
the Financial Statements.
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7. Net assets

7.1 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities origi-
nating in a prior reporting period but which are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position for the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts
are transferred to the National Revenue Fund on disposal, repayment or
recovery of such amounts.

7.2 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a
previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current
financial year.

8. Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family
members where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.

Accounting Policies
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Final 
Appropriation 

 Actual 
Expenditure 

 
Variance 

Economic classification R’000  R’000  R’000 
 
Current payment: 2,322,443  2,202,515  119,928 
Compensation of employees 1,631,064  1,609,485   21,579  
Goods and services 691,379  588,296   103,083  
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities -  4,734   (4,734) 

Transfers and subsidies: 17,394,376  16,750,615  643,761 
Provinces and municipalities 7,384,275  6,992,736   391,539  
Departmental agencies and accounts 8,218,658  8,218,629   29  
Universities 5,285  2,285   3,000  
Public corporations and private enterprises 278,667  222,362   56,305  
Foreign governments and international organisations 631,992  503,820   128,172  
Non-profit institutions 127  127   -   
Households 875,372  810,656   64,716  

Payments for capital assets: 31,548  13,038  18,510 
Machinery and equipment 29,410  13,038  16,372 
Software and other intangible assets 2,138  -  2,138  

Total per economic classification 19,748,367  18,966,168  782,199 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
 Note R'000  R'000 
 
REVENUE  

Annual appropriation 1 19,748,367  16,729,581 
Appropriation for unauthorised expenditure approved 9 - 167 
Departmental revenue 2 5,095,776  4,720,125 
Direct exchequer receipts  - -
Local and foreign aid assistance  3 12,805  5,471 

TOTAL REVENUE  24,856,948  21,455,344 

EXPENDITURE  

Current expenditure  

Compensation of employees 4 1,609,485  1,453,360 
Goods and services 5 588,296  415,549 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 6 4,734  6,314 
Local and foreign aid assistance 3 11,288  7,749 
Unauthorised expenditure approved 9 - 167 

Total current expenditure  2,213,803  1,883,139 

Transfers and subsidies  

Provinces and municipalities  6,992,736   5,443,953 
Departmental agencies  8,218,629   7,153,082 
Universities  2,285   3,500 
Public corporations and private enterprises  222,362  312,238 
Foreign governments and international organisations  503,820   521,219 
Non-profit institutions  127   - 
Households  810,656   795,014 

Total transfers and subsidies 7 16,750,615  14,229,006 

Expenditure for capital assets  

Machinery and equipment 8 13,038  11,394 
Local and foreign aid assistance 3 166  89 

Total expenditure for capital assets  13,204  11,483 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  18,977,622  16,123,628 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  5,879,326  5,331,716 

Reconciliation of surplus for the year  

Voted Funds  14 782,199  613,958 
Departmental Revenue 15 5,095,776  4,720,125 
Direct exchequer receipts  - -
Local and foreign aid assistance   1,351  (2,367) 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  5,879,326  5,331,716 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
 Note R'000  R'000 
 
ASSETS  

Current assets  806,407  576,598 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 791,809  558,462 
Prepayments and advances 11 280  437 
Receivables 12 12,780  16,703 
Local and foreign aid assistance receivable 3 1,538  996 

Non-current assets  200,001  200,001 
Investments 13 200,001  200,001 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,006,408  776,599 

LIABILITIES  

Current liabilities  806,309  576,557 
Voted funds to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund 14 782,199  561,204 
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund 15 9,593  7,895 
Payables 16 11,999  6,811 
Local and foreign aid assistance unutilised 3 2,518  647 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  806,309  576,557 

NET ASSETS  200,099  200,042 

Represented by:  

Capitalisation reserve  200,001  200,001 
Recoverable revenue (staff and other debts recovered)  98  41 

TOTAL  200,099  200,042 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
 Note R'000  R'000 
 
Capitalisation reserves  

Opening balance  200,001  200,001 

Closing balance capitalisation reserves  200,001  200,001 

Capitalisation reserves  

Opening balance  41 13 
Transfers:  57 28 

Irrecoverable amounts written off 6.3 (1)  - 
Debts recovered (included in departmental revenue)  (85)  (90) 
Debts raised  143  118 

Closing balance capitalisation reserves  98 41 

TOTAL NET ASSETS  200,099  200,042 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
 Note R'000  R’000 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Receipts  24,855,263  21,385,982 

Annual appropriated funds received 1 19,748,367  16,676,827 
Appropriation for unauthorised expenditure received 9 - 167 
Departmental revenue received 2 5,094,091  4,703,517 
Direct exchequer receipts  - -
Local and foreign aid assistance received 3 12,805  5,471 

Net decrease / (increase) in working capital  9,268  (15,341) 
Surrendered to National Revenue Fund  (5,655,282)  (5,931,721) 
Current payments  (2,213,825)  (1,882,972) 
Unauthorised expenditure - current payment 9 - (167) 
Transfers and subsidies paid  (16,750,615)  (14,229,006) 

Net cash flow available from operating activities 17 244,809  (673,225) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Payments for capital assets  (13,204)  (11,483) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2 - 309 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (13,204)  (11,174) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Dividends received  1,685  16,299 
Increase in net assets  57  28 

Net cash flows from financing activities  1,742  16,327 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  233,347  (668,072) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  558,462  1,226,534 
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18 791,809  558,462 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2008

1. Annual appropriation  
Final 

Appropriation 

 
Actual Funds 

Received 

 Appropriation 
received 
2006/07 

Programme description R’000  R’000  R’000 
Administration 202,361  202,361  173,392 
Public Finance and Budget Management 223,690  223,690  157,533 
Asset and Liability Management 75,953  75,953  59,155 
Financial Management and Systems 340,120  340,120  310,560 
Financial Accounting and Reporting 102,146  102,146  75,644 
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations 109,108  109,108  74,855 
Provincial and Local Government Transfers 7,384,275  7,384,275  5,623,748 
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits 2,238,308  2,238,308  2,189,085 
Fiscal Transfers 9,072,406  9,072,406  8,012,855 

Total appropriation 19,748,367  19,748,367  16,676,827 

National Treasury received and transferred all of the equitable share allocations to provinces which amounted to R172.9 billion (2006/07 R150.8 billion) 

 
2007/08  2006/07 

2. Departmental revenue  Note R’000  R’000 
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 45,215  36,274 
Fines, penalties and forfeits  - 365,000 
Interest and dividends 2.2 4,884,243  4,281,186 
Sales of capital assets 2.3 - 309 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 166,318  37,356 

Departmental revenue collected  5,095,776  4,720,125 

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets     
Sales of goods and services produced by the department  45,215  36,274 

Sales by market establishment  85  174 
Administrative fees  45,130  36,100 

Total sales of goods and services other than capital assets  45,215  36,274 

2.2  Interest and dividends     
Interest   4,882,558  4,264,887 
Dividends  1,685  16,299 

Total interest and dividends 4,884,243  4,281,186 

2.3 Sale of capital assets     
Other capital assets  -  309 

Total sale of capital assets - 309 

2.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities     
Nature of recovery 
Receivables  166,252  37,336 
Other receipts including recoverable revenue  66  20 

Total financial transactions in assets and liabilities 166,318  37,356 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
3. Local and foreign aid assistance  R’000  R’000 
 

3.1 Foreign assistance received in cash from RDP 
Opening Balance (371)  1,996 
Revenue  12,805  5,471 
Expenditure 11,454  7,838 

Current 11,288  7,749 
Capital 166  89 

Closing balance 980  (371) 

3.2 Local assistance received in cash: other  
Opening balance 22  22 
Expenditure 22  - 

Current (22)  - 

Closing balance - 22 

Total assistance 
Opening balance (349)  2,018 
Revenue  12,805  5,471 
Expenditure 11,476  7,838 

Current 11,310  7,749 
Capital 166 89 

Closing balance 980  (349) 

Analysis of balance     
Local and foreign aid receivable   (1,538)  (996) 
Local and foreign aid unutilised  2,518  647 

Closing balance  980  (349) 

4. Compensation of employees  

4.1 Salaries   
Basic salary  170,573  147,166 
Performance award  18,522  14,964 
Service Based  - 6
Compensative/circumstantial  15,447  11,782 
Other non-pensionable allowances  40,837  34,203 

Total salaries  245,379  208,121 

Average number of employees (Refer to 4.1 and 4.2.1) 796   730 
 

4.2 Social contributions  

4.2.1. Employer contributions 
Pension  21,084  16,934 
Medical  6,254  5,820 
Bargaining council  23 22 

Total social contributions  27,361  22,776 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
4.2.2 Post retirement benefits Note R’000  R’000 

Medical  1,336,745  1,222,463 

Total post retirement benefits  1,336,745  1,222,463 

Total compensation of employees  1,609,485  1,453,360 

Average number of pensioners (Refer to 4.2.2)  68 536  68 396 
 

5. Goods and services  

Advertising  3,268  3,279 
Attendance fees (including registration fees)  53 23 
Bank charges and card fees  181  180 
Bursaries (employees)  1,203  777 
Catering  2,557  - 
Communication  6,164  5,635 
Computer services  245,108  168,562 
Consultants, contractors and special services  174,816  112,080 
Courier and delivery services  149  143 
Drivers’ licences and permits  2 3
Entertainment  310  2,360 
External audit fees 5.1 9,453  9,467 
Equipment less than R5000  1,542  3,406 
Firearm handling fees  1 -
Inventory 5.2 15,531  14,402 
Legal fees  11,521  11,049 
Maintenance, repairs and running costs  1,472  2,823 
Medical Services  - 25 
Operating leases    25,614  18,303 
Personnel agency fees  9,650  7,441 
Photographic services  95 12 
Plants, flowers and other decorations  995  196 
Printing and publications  14 225 
Professional bodies and membership fees  488  719 
Resettlement costs  680  669 
Subscriptions   4,263  2,502 
Owned and leasehold property expenditure  4,311  4,978 
Translations and transcriptions  239  27 
Travel and subsistence 5.3 38,705  26,401 
Venues and facilities  17,583  10,531 
Protective, special clothing & uniforms  8 3
Training & staff development  12,320  9,328 

Total goods and services  588,296  415,549 

5.1 External audit fees  
Regularity audits  5,629  7,760 
Performance audits  3,431  1,575 
Other audits  393  132 

Total external audit fees  9,453  9,467 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
5.2  Inventory Note R’000  R’000 

Domestic consumables  690  662 
Food and food supplies  532  354 
Fuel, oil and gas  196  146 
Other consumables  87  32 
Parts and other maintenance material  1,127  765 
Stationery and printing  12,809  12,390 
Restoration and fittings  90  53 

Total inventory  15,531  14,402 

5.3 Travel and subsistence  
Local   24,307  15,297 
Foreign  14,398  11,104 

Total travel and subsistence  38,705  26,401 

6. Financial transactions in assets and liabilities  
Material losses written off 6.1 146  2,644 
Debts written off 6.2 4,588  3,670 

Total financial transactions in assets and liabilities  4,734  6,314 

6.1 Material losses written off  
Accidental damages (hired vehicles)  7 10 
State Guarantees  76  2,245 
Miscellaneous  63  189 

Total material losses written off  146  2,644 

6.2 Debts written off  
Civil and Military pensions (bad debts)  4,588  3,670 

Total debts written off  4,588  3,670 

6.3 Irrecoverable amounts written off  
Receivables written off  1 -

Total irrecoverable amounts written off  1 -

7. Transfers and subsidies  
Provinces and municipalities  6,992,736  5,443,953 

Conditional grants (infrastructure) paid to provinces Annex 1A 6,276,244  4,983,498 
Conditional grants (financial management) paid to municipalities Annex 1B 145,250  145,250 
Conditional grants (restructuring) paid to municipalities Annex 1C 530,000  265,000 
In kind conditional grants to municipalities Annex 1D 41,242  50,000 
Unconditional grants (regional council levy) paid to municipalities Annex 1E - 205 

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1F 8,218,629  7,153,082 
Universities Annex 1G 2,285  3,500 
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1H 503,820  521,219 
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1I 222,362  312,238 
Non-profit institutions Annex 1J 127  - 
Households Annex 1K 810,656  795,014 

Total transfers and subsidies 16,750,615  14,229,006 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
8. Expenditure for capital assets Note R’000  R’000 

Machinery and equipment 28 13,038  11,394 

Total expenditure for capital assets 13,038  11,394 

9. Unauthorised expenditure  
Opening balance  - 167 
Current expenditure approved by Parliament (with funding) - Finance Act (2007) - (167) 

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation  - -

10. Cash and cash equivalents  
Consolidated Paymaster General Account  770,321  552,578 
Cash on hand  21 21 
Cash with commercial banks  21,467  5,863 

Total cash and cash equivalents  791,809  558,462 

11. Prepayments and advances  
Travel and subsistence  154  201 
Prepayments paid to other entities  126  236 

Total prepayments and advances  280  437 

12. Receivables  Less than 
one year 

One to 
three years 

Older than 
three years Total  Total 

Description Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000  R’000 
Households and non-profit institutions 12.1 1,464 5,016 1,478 7,958  10,589 
Staff debtors 12.2 293 63 22 378  323 
Other debtors 12.3 1,367 19 204 1,590  637 
Intergovernmental receivables Annex 4 1,162 241 1,451 2,854  5,154 

Total  4,286 5,339 3,155 12,780  16,703 

12.1 Households and non-profit institutions  
Civil and Military pensions debt  65  795 
Civil and Military pensions allowance  5,976  7,945 
Special pensions disallowance  1,917  1,849 

Total households and non-profit institutions  7,958  10,589 

12.2 Staff Debtors 
Departmental debts  305  254 
Other staff debts  73 69 

Total staff debtors 378  323 

12.3 Other debtors 
Theft and losses  462  418 
Value added tax (SARS)  1,110  219 
Miscellaneous  18  - 

Total Other debtors 1,590  637 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
13. Investments (non current shares) Note R’000  R’000 

Development Bank of South Africa Annex 2A & 2B 200,000  200,000 
Public Investment Corporation Limited Annex 2A & 2B 1 1
SASRIA 1 Annex 2A & 2B - -

Total investments   200,001  200,001 
1 Total shareholding in SASRIA Limited amounts to R1.  Kindly refer to Annexure 2A for more details. 

Analysis of non current investments  
Opening balance  200,001  200,001 

Closing balance of non current investments  200,001  200,001 

14. Voted funds to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund  
Opening balance  561,204  1,115,324 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance  782,199  613,958 
Voted funds not requested/not received 14.1 - (52,754) 
Paid during the year  (561,204)  (1,115,324) 

Closing balance Voted funds to be surrendered   782,199  561,204 

14.1 Voted funds not requested  
Funds not to be requested  - (52,754) 

Total voted funds not requested  - (52,754) 

15. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund 
Opening balance  7,895  104,167 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance  5,095,776  4,720,125 
Paid during the year  (5,094,078)  (4,816,397) 

Closing balance departmental revenue to be surrendered  9,593  7,895 

16. Payables  
Description Notes 30 Days Total  Total 
Advances received 16.1 2 2 7
Clearing accounts 16..2 40 40  52 
Other payables 16.3 11,957 11,957  6,752 

Total payables  11,999 11,999  6,811 

16.1 Advances received 
Pensions Administration  2 7

Total advances received  2 7

16.2  Clearing accounts  
Receivable Interest  16  36 
Salary recalls  - 16 
Income Tax  24  - 

Total clearing accounts  40  52 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
16.3  Other payables Note R’000  R’000 

Recoverable revenue civil and military pensions  9,830  5,778 
Recoverable revenue special pensions  1,920  879 
Other  207  95 

Total other payables  11,957  6,752 

17. Net cash flow available from operating activities  
Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance  5,879,326  5,331,716 
Add back non cash / cash movements not deemed operating activities  (5,634,517)  (6,004,941) 

Decrease in receivables  3,923  10,254 
Increase in prepayments and advances  157 6
Increase in other current assets  - (829) 
Increase / (decrease) in payables  5,188  (25,768) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  - (309) 
Decrease in other financial assets  (1,685)   
Expenditure on capital assets  13,204  11,483 
Surrenders to National Revenue Fund  (5,655,282)  (5,931,721) 
Voted funds not requested  - (52,754) 
Other non-cash items  (22)  (15,303) 

Net cash flow generated by operating activities  244,809  (673,225) 

18. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 
Consolidated Paymaster General Account  770,321  552,578 
Cash on hand  21 21 
Cash with commercial banks  21,467  5,863 

Total reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents  791,809  558,462 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
19. Contingent liabilities Note R’000  R’000 

Liable to Nature  

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 3A 508 661 
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A 437 518 
Other guarantees  Annex 3A 13,467,521  13,189,087 

Local guarantees  Financial institutions  979,628  920,533 
Local guaranteed interest Financial institutions  73,696  90,957 
Foreign guarantees Financial institutions  12,338,268  12,094,226 
Foreign guaranteed interest Financial institutions  75,929  83,371 

Claims against the department  Annex 3B 670 1,727 
Other  Annex 3B 41,331  44,248 

Total  13,510,467  13,236,241 

20. Commitments (approved and contracted)  
Current expenditure  413 1,342 
Capital expenditure  22 98 

Total Commitments  435 1,440 

21. Accruals  

Listed by economic classification 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
Compensation of employees 19,514 - 19,514  19,785 
Goods and services 16,410 455 16,865  26,743 
Transfers and subsidies 21,780 - 21,780  19,543 

Total accruals per economic classification 57,704 455            58,159  66,071 

Listed by programme  
Administration  1,693   3,844 
Public Finance and Budget Management  1,093   8,977 
Asset and Liability Management  246   353 
Financial Management and Systems  10,301   11,175 
Financial Accounting and Reporting  1,084   1,234 
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations  1,409   -
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributing to Funds and Other Benefits  42,333  40,488 

Total accruals per programme economic classification  58,159  66,071 

22. Employee benefits  
Leave entitlement  3,910  4,976 
Thirteenth cheque  5,109  4,866 
Performance awards  20,000  18,131 
Capped leave commitments  13,326  12,889 

Total employee benefits  42,345  40,862 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
23. Lease commitments (Finance)  R’000  R’000 

2007/2008 
Machinery and 

equipment 
 

Total  Total 
Not later than 1 year 311  311  - 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,465  1,465  - 

Total present value of lease liabilities 1,776  1,776  - 

2006/2007      
Not later than 1 year 966  966  - 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2455  2455  - 

Total present value of lease liabilities 3,421  3,421  - 

24. Receivables for departmental revenue  
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets  3,599  - 
Interest, dividends and rent on land  389,317  348,559 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities  930  4,364 

Total receivables for departmental revenue  393,846  352,923 

25. Irregular expenditure  

25.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure  
Opening balance  176  176 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement  176 176 

Analysis of awaiting condonement per classification  
Current expenditure  176  176 

 
Analysis of awaiting condonement per age classification 
Prior years  176  176 

25.2 Irregular expenditure details    
Incident Disciplinary steps taken    
Payment to WEFA None- awaiting condonement 41  41 
Payment to Deloitte & Touchè  None- awaiting condonement 36  36 
Payment to New Africa None- awaiting condonement 99  99 

Total irregular expenditure details 176  176 

26. Key management personnel 
No. of 

Individuals 
 

Political office bearers (provide detail below) 2 2,164  1,950 
Officials  47,143  37,524 

Level 15 to 16 14 13,434 10,303 
Level 14 53 33,709 27,221 

Total key management personnel 49,307 39,474 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2008

2007/08  2006/07 
27. Provisions Note R’000  R’000 

Potential irrecoverable debts 27.1 4,387  1,508 
Other provisions 27.2 510,698  512,391 

Total provisions and write offs 515,085  513,899 

27.1 Potential irrecoverable debts     
Households and non-profit institutions  4,277  1,134 
Staff debtors 9 89 
Other debtors 101 285 

Total potential irrecoverable debts 4,387  1,508 

27.2 Other provisions  
Special pensions 503,179  479,194 
Military pensions 137 62 
Injury on duty 106 33,135 

Total other provisions 503,422  512,391 

28. Tangible Capital Assets 

28.1 Movement in tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008 
 

Opening 
balance 

Current Year 
Adjustments 
to prior year 

balances Additions Disposals 
Closing 
Balance 

 Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 
Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Transport assets 2,775  1,237 - 3,221 
Computer equipment 32,258 (4,666) 12,030 - 49,278 
Furniture and office equipment 32,241 (2,276) 3,570 43 34,263 
Other machinery and equipment 4,210 (1,059) 795 - 4,983 

Total tangible asset movements 82,071 (8,001) 17,632 43 91,745 

28.2 Additions to tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008 

Cash Non-cash 

Received 
current, not 

paid Total 
 Cost Fair Value/R1 Cost Cost 
Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Transport assets 1,177 60 - 1,237 
Computer equipment 10,476 1,554 - 12,030 
Furniture and office equipment 720 2,850 - 3,570 
Other machinery and equipment 665 130 - 795 

Total tangible capital asset additions 13,038 4,594 - 17,632 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2008

28.3    Disposals of tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008 

Sold for cash 
(cost) 

Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped (cost) 
Total 

disposals  

Cash 
received 

actual 
Description 

R’000 R’000 R’000  R’000 
Furniture and office equipment - 43 43   

Total tangible capital asset disposal - 43 43  - 

28.4 Movement in tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008 
Opening 
balance Additions Disposals 

Closing 
balance 

Description 
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Transport assets 1,177 - 60 1,237 
Computer equipment 10,476 - 1,554 12,030 
Furniture and office equipment 720 - 2,850 3,570 
Other machinery and equipment 665 - 130 795 

Total tangible asset movements 13,038 - 4,594 17,632 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY

for the year ended 31 March 2008

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Project
Development Facility which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2008,
income statement, statement of changes in net equity and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 184 to 197.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with South African Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and in the
manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA).

3. This responsibility includes:

• designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

• selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies

• making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

4. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South
Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of
2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

5. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No.

National Treasury<<182

National Treasury Part2:Treasury Annual Rep07 Part2 9/19/2008 10:52 AM Page 182



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2008

31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance on
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial state-
ments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control.

7. An audit also includes evaluating the:

• appropriateness of accounting policies used

• reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management

• overall presentation of the financial statements.

8. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION

9. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Project Development Facility as at 31 March 2008
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accor-
dance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and in the manner required by the PFMA.

OTHER MATTERS

Without qualifying my audit opinion, I draw attention to the following matters
that relate to my responsibilities in the audit of the financial statements.
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Matters of governance

10. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities con-
cerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of certain key governance responsibili-
ties, which I have assessed as follows:
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Matter of governance Yes No

Audit committee
• The Project Development Facility had an audit committee in operation throughout
the financial year. X

• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of
reference. X

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out
in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 X

Internal audit
• The Project Development Facility had an internal audit function in operation
throughout the financial year. X

• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. X
• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as
set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2 X

Other matters of governance
• The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated
deadlines (section 40 of the PFMA). X

• The financial statements submitted for auditing were not subject to any material
amendments resulting from the audit. X

• No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or
the unavailability of expected information and/or the unavailability of senior
management.

X

• The prior year's external audit recommendations have been substantially
implemented. X
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APPRECIATION

11. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Project Development Facility
during the audit is sincerely appreciated.
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Pretoria
31 July 2008

Report of the Auditor-General
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Notes    
22000088

RR

22000077

RR

Revenue 

 

7 6 496 060 

 

61 262 544
 
Operating expenses    (8 443 146)   (3 607 225)
 
Profit from operations 7   (1 947 086)   57 655 319

Net finance income 8   6 414 571   2 433 055
 
Net profit for the year    4 467 485  60 088 374
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Notes 
22000088

RR

22000077

RR

ASSETS 

 

Current assets  81 663 296  72 117 617
Trade and other receivables 9  614 510  2 385 180
Cash and cash equivalents 10  81 048 786  69 732 437

Total assets  81 663 296  72 117 617
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

Reserves  
Accumulated profit   76 538 580  72 071 095
 
Current liabilities  
Trade and other payables 11        5 124 716  46 522
 
Total equity and liabilities  81 663 296  72 117 617

Balance Sheet
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AAccccuummuullaatteedd
ssuurrpplluuss

RR

Balance at 1 April 2006 

 

11 982 721
Net profit for the year       60 088 374
Balance at 1 April 2007            72 071 095 

Net profit for the year       4 467 485
 

Balance at 31 March 2008 
 

76 538 580
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Notes 
 

22000088

RR

22000077

RR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

 

Cash received from government and 
other sources 

 
8 456 060 

 
59 302 544

Cash paid to suppliers 
 

(3 364 952)   (4 281 261)

Cash generated from operations 
 

12  5 091 108   55 021 283

Net finance income received 
 

13  6 225 241   2 064 259

 
Net cash from operating activities   11 316 349   57 085 542
 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 
 

11 316 349   57 085 542

Cash and cash equivalents at  
beginning of the year 

 69 732 437   12 646 895

 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR 

 
81 048 786 

 
69 732 437

Cash Flow Statement
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The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of
1999 as amended.

The following are the principal accounting policies of the entity which are, in all material
modifications, consistent with those applied in the previous year, except as otherwise
indicated:

1. Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. No
modifications were made for measurement of financial instruments to fair
value.

2. Currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rands since that is the
currency in which the majority of the entity’s transactions are denominated.

3. Revenue recognition

3.1 Government grants for the financing of operating expenditure are those received
from National Treasury, are accounted for as income on the accrual basis and are
not repayable.

3.2 Other income relates to fees charged upon financial close of a PPP in terms of
Treasury Regulation 16 and is accounted for as it accrues.

3.3 Interest is on a time proportion and is therefore recognised as it accrues.

4. Financial instruments

Financial assets carried on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and trade receivables. These instruments are generally carried at
their estimated fair value. The particular recognition methods are disclosed in the
individual notes associated with each item, as set out below.

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
of deposits held with banks.
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5. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

6. Public sector practices and policies

6.1 Inter-relationship with other government entities

The entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, within the South
African Government environment. In line with prevailing government practices
the entity is not obliged to pay for certain expenditure such as office space and
utilisation of moveable assets.

6.2 Public Finance Management Act reporting requirements

Section 40(3) (b)
No material losses occurred during the current financial year due to criminal
conduct nor any unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure, fruitless
expenditure or wasteful expenditure.

Accounting Policies
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7. Profit from operations 
Profit from operations is arrived at after taking 
the following into account: 

 

11.    Trade and other payables  

Trade accounts payable  3 619 709   45 600
Accrued expenses  1 067   922
Interdepartmental Debts  1 503 940   -
 5 124 716   46 522

Revenue from:     
- Government grants received  6 000 000   56 000 000
- Other income   496 060   5 262 544
 6 496 060   61 262 544
Expenditure for:     
- Audit fees  12 607   -
- Financial management services  317 110   398 749
- Bank charges  11 404   10 593
- Transaction advisors’ fees  8 102 025   3 197 883
 
Operating profit 

 
(1 947 086) 

 
57 655 319

8. Net finance income   
Interest  received – cash and bank deposits  6 414 571   2 433 055

 
9. Trade and other receivables  
Trade accounts receivable     1 960 000
Accrued revenue – interest receivable  614 510   425 180
 614 510   2 385 180

10.     Cash and cash equivalents  

Bank balance – Project Development Facility  31 113 474   19 732 437
Bank balance – Neighbourhood Development 
Programme Grant  

 
49 935 312 

 
50 000 000

 81 048 786   69 732 437
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12. Reconciliation of net profit for the year 
to cash generated from operations 

 
Net profit for the year  4 467 485  60 088 374  
Net finance income  (6 414 571)   (2 433 055)  
 
Operating cash flows before working capital 
changes 

 
(1 947 086) 

 
57 655 319

 

Working capital changes:  7 038 194   (2 634  036)  
 
- Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other 
 payables and provisions 

 5 078 194   (674 036)  

- Decrease / (Increase) in trade and other 
 receivables 

 1 960 000   (1 960 000)  

Cash generated from operations 
 

5 091 108 
 

55 021 283
 

13. Net finance income received  

Accrued net finance income at beginning of year  425 180   56 384  

Net finance income received per income statement  6 414 571   2 433 055  

Accrued net finance income at the end of the year  (614 510)   (425 180)  

Net finance income received 6 225 241 2 064 259  
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14. Contingent liabilities 

The accumulated profit of R 76 538 580 is retained for the funding of Transaction Advisors 
costs associated with the establishment of selected PPP projects and NDPG approved for 
funding during the course of the Project Development Facility’s normal course of 
operations.  Funding is disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined 
milestones and Treasury Approvals.  The Project Development Facility has applied to 
National Treasury to retain the accumulated profit.  Movement on PPP and NDPG projects 
identified for funding during the period: 
 

22000088

RR

AAddddiittiioonnaall
FFuunnddss
22000088

RR

AAmmoouunntt
DDiissbbuurrsseedd

22000088

RR

22000077

RR

Free State Newly Built Hospitals 
 

1 1 861 912 
 
- - 1 861 912 

Vukuzakhe Plant Depot 1 1 081 011 - - 1 081 011 
Eastern Cape Pharmaceuticals  1 458 939 - - 1 458 939 
Settlers and Port Alfred Hospitals  - - 322 439 322 439 
Western Cape Swellendam 
Hospital 

 230 472 - 50 253 280 725 

Cape Nature – PPP Tourism toolkit 2 1 260 905 1 400 000 139 095 - 
Limpopo Department of Health – 
Penge Hospital 

2 - 45 000 45 000 - 

Potchefstroom Municipality – Solid 
Waste Management 

2 1 770 230 1 928 975 158 745 - 

Greater Kokstad Municipality – 
Civic Centre 

2 2 000 000 2 000 000 - - 

Greater Sekhukhune District 
Municipality – Water and Sanitation 
municipal entity 

2 600 000 600 000 - - 

 
Total  10 263 469 5 973 975 

 
715 532 5 005 026 

1. Funding of these projects has been withdrawn and formal delisting is pending. 
2. New projects 
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14. Contingent liabilities (Continued) 

In 2006, the Project Development Facility inherited a number of projects from the 
Municipal Infrastructure Investment Unit (MIIU). The status of the current projects is as 
follows: 
 

22000088

RR

AAddddiittiioonnaall
FFuunnddss
22000088

RR

AAmmoouunntt
DDiissbbuurrsseedd

22000088

RR

22000077

RR

City of Cape Town – Water and 
Sanitation 

 

1 750 000 
 
- - 750 000 

City of Cape Town - Landfill 1 377 544 - - 377 544 
Local Municipality of Madibeng – 
Water and Sanitation 

 

500 000 
- -

500 000 
 
Total   1 627 544 - 

 
- 1 627 544 

1. Funding of these projects has been withdrawn and formal delisting is pending. 
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15. Commitments 
 
15.1 Programme commitments 
 
Commitments arising from future funding of the above the PDF and NDPG projects will be 
financed from the current accumulated profit of R 76 538 580 as well as future government 
grants. At year end the funds approved and allocated to PDF and NDPG related projects were 
as follows: 
 

• PDF – R 7 820 546 
• NDPG – R26 413 909 

 
15.2 Operating commitments 

Payable within the next 12 months:  
- Contractual commitments  228 000  114 000
 
Payable between 2 and 5 years:  
- Contractual commitments  342 000  -

The Project Development Facility appointed Siyaya Inc for the outsourced financial 
management of the Project Development Facility. 
 
16. Taxation 

No provision is made for taxation, as the Project Development Facility is exempt from taxation 
in terms of Section 10(1) (a) of the Income Tax Act, 1962. 

 

17. Events after the reporting date 
 

There were no events after balance sheet date that might have a material effect on the fair 
presentation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2008. 
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18.      Related party transactions 
 

The Project Development Facility received grants from the following related parties: 
 

National Treasury  6 000 000  56 000 000 
City of Cape Town  - 377 544

 6 000 000  56 000 000

The Project Development Facility owed the following amount to related parties: 
 
Eastern Cape Department of Health  1 503 940  -

1 503 940  -
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT STATISTICAL REPORT

1. SERVICE DELIVERY

Organisational environment

The National Treasury recognises that competent people working in teams and
directed by strong leaders, are key to an effective, relevant and respected
organisation. The department strives to remain an employer of choice in the public
sector and in this regard, actively invests time in order to achieve this. Various
initiatives are underway in the organisation to consistently improve the working
environment and competencies of our most valuable asset – our team. Advances
have also been made to render the organisation more effective in terms of its
recruitment and retention strategies. These will be implemented systematically
over the medium term.

Fiscal, budgeting and accounting reforms

Initiatives to improve on the allocation and management of public funds are con-
stantly being considered in the interest of all South Africans. Resource allocation
for sustainable growth and development, and reducing poverty, will remain high on
Government’s agenda, and the National Treasury will continue to play its part to
attain this objective.

Realising greater value for money continues to feature prominantly on Treasury’s
agenda. This is given form through technical assistance and ongoing incremental
improvements made to budgeting and reporting systems. Substantial effort has
been made and resources allocated to roll out accounting policies and making
adjustments to the financial classification system for purposes of greater trans-
parency and deeper analysis of spending patterns.

Economic Policy

This has been an area of particularly intense activity over the past year, largely due
to recent volatility in the global environment. Governments’ spending choices
therefore take into account a more unsettled global environment. Whilst total
revenue growth is expected to moderate in line with economic activity, strong com-
modity prices are generating robust tax revenues in the mining sector.

Prudent fiscal policy choices and strong economic growth over the past five years
have created the fiscal space to support economic and social development.
Public expenditure therefore is focused on areas that will raise growth over the
medium to long term, such as economic infrastructure, education, health and basic
household services. The redistributive stance of government remains intact and is
given form with increases in transfers to poor households.

Intergovernmental Relations

The characteristics of our democratic system demand a well established intergov-
ernmental system that seeks to better coordinate service delivery across govern-
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ment. Furthermore, the flow of information across the three spheres of government
is imperative when ensuring that the needs of the people are addressed in the allo-
cation of financial resources. In this respect the National Treasury has continued
advancing the depth and integrity of financial data available from provinces and
local government.

Grant allocation frameworks have been refined in order to ensure greater trans-
parency and more concrete performance measures. It is envisaged that these
resources will further improve service delivery. Labour intensive infrastructure
development projects continue to provide employment opportunities and to deliver
infrastructure that will be required in future.

Budget reforms and stronger financial management practices are being reinforced
at the local government level and will remain an area of focus until stabilised over
the medium term. The MFMA provides a solid basis to better implement
modern and effective financial management systems.

PFMA Implementation

The PFMA has received dedicated commitment for several years. With a better
understanding of the PFMA and its implications for financial management, focus
has shifted towards deepening various processes such as supply chain management,
asset management and financial reporting. Whilst several of these have been
designed and rollouts embarked on, the fruits of their implementation will only be
seen over the medium term. These continuous improvements will allow govern-
ment to extend transparency, efficiency and sustainability in the use and manage-
ment of financial resources and, over time, realise greater value for money.

Tax Policy

Maintaining the balance between the tax burden on taxpayers and the demands on
government services is a subject of unwavering commitment from the National
Treasury. Ensuring that domestic and international markets view South Africa as
predictable and consistent is important for investment decisions. Notwithstanding
this, tax policy is constantly being adapted to respond to the economic outlook and
the needs of specific sectors of our economy. For this system to be effective accu-
rate and up to date information is critical. The National Treasury and SARS thus
work closely in the drafting of tax legislation.

Managing Public Sector Debt

With regard to asset and liability management, the debt management strategy has
evolved from exclusively financing the borrowing requirement to offering broader
support for government’s macroeconomic objectives. Debt servicing cost as a per-
centage of GDP continued to decline, reaching 2.6 per cent of GDP. During 2007,
key rating agencies revised South Africa’s sovereign credit ratings from ‘stable’ to
‘positive’. This is largely due to the prudent fiscal stance and accumulation of
reserves.
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International Financial Relations

With an increasingly interdependent global environment, international financial
relations and regional economic integration enjoy relative high priority. South
Africa successfully chaired the G20 Ministers’ and Governors’ meeting during the
period under review. Regional policy issues largely addressed matters relating to
progress towards the Millenium Development Goals (MDG’s) and deepening inte-
gration of regional economic activity through regional institutions such as the
African Development Bank and the African Union. These will continue to feature
on our development agenda. After being the recipient of development assistance
from many countries during our own transition, South Africa is increasingly
becoming a donor in its own right, with funding mainly being channeled through
the African Renaissance Fund. South Africa’s contributions to peacekeeping
efforts, investment promotion and economic cooperation have also gained impetus.

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical Report
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2. EXPENDITURE

Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final audit-
ed expenditure by programme (Table 2.1) and by salary bands (Table 2.2). In particular, it provides an
indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary bands
within the department.

Table 2.1 - Personnel costs by programme, 2007/08

Programme 
Total 

Expenditure 
(R’000) 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Professional 
and Special 

Services 
(R’000) 

Personnel 
cost as a 

percent of 
total 

expenditure 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Programme 1 
Administration 

177,602 61,073 3,925 17,874 33.2 239 

Programme 2 
Economic Planning and 
Budget Management 

211,997 89,738 1,739 90,736 42.3 392 

Programme 3 
Asset and Liability 
Management 

57,827 30,054 452 14,980 52.0 301 

Programme 4 
 Financial Management 
and Systems 

267,936 32,291 4,711 697 12.1 409 

Programme 5 
Financial Accounting 
and Reporting 

98,760 22,492 842 10,647 22.8 369 

Programme 6 
Economic Policy and 
International Financial 
Relations 

93,194 37,092 651 14,552 39.8 0 

Programme 7 
Provincial and Local 
Government Transfers 

6,992,736 0 0 0 0.0 0 

Programme 8 
Civil and Military 
Pensions, Contributions 
to Funds 

2,176,826 0 0 25,330 0.0 0 

Programme 9 
Fiscal Transfers 

8,889,290 0 0 0 0.0 0 

Total 18,966,168 272,740 12,320 174,816  
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Table 2.2 – Personnel costs by salary bands, 2007/08

Salary bands 
Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000) 
% of total personnel 

cost 
Average personnel cost 

per employee (R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

93 0.03 93 

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5) 

4,782 1.8 96 

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6-8) 

35,802 13.2 172 

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

106,315 39.3 311 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16)  

123,583 45.7 594 

Total 270,575 100 334 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 

 

Annual Report 2007/08 203>>

The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 2.3) and salary bands (Table 2.4), of
expenditure incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowances and medical assistance.
In each case, the table provides an indication of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used for
these items.

Table 2.3 – Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowances and medical assistance
by programme, 2007/08

Programme Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners’ 

Allowance 
Medical Assistance 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Salaries as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

HOA as a 
% of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Programme 1 40,331 63.9 297 0.5 645 1.1 1,670 2.7 

Programme 2 54,196 60.4 56 0.1 1,464 1.6 1,748 1.9 

Programme 3 18,853 62.7 0 0.0 325 1.1 751 2.5 

Programme 4 21,216 65.7 0 0.0 184 0.6 952 2.9 

Programme 5 13,427 59.7 0 0.0 137 0.6 396 1.8 

Programme 6 22,550 60.8 0 0.0 423 1.1 737 2.0 

Programme 7 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0.0 

Programme 8 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0.0 

Programme 9 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0.0 

Total 170,573 62.0 353 0.1 3,178 1.2 6,254 2.3 

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical Report
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Table 2.4 – Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance and medical assistance
by salary bands, 2007/08

Salary Bands Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners’ 

Allowance 
Medical Assistance 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Salaries as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overtime as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

HOA as a 
% of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 

63 67.7 0 0.0 6 6.5 12 12.9 

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5) 

3,329 69.6 42 0.9 105 2.2 229 4.8 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

23,261 65.0 155 0.4 515 1.4 1,449 4.0 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

73,582 69.2 156 0.1 672 0.6 2,650 2.5 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 

69,038 55.9 0 0.0 1,880 1.5 1,846 1.5 

Total 169,273 62.6 353 0.1 3,178 1.2 6,186 2.3 
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3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The following tables summarise the number of posts in the establishment, the number of employees, the
vacancy rate, and any staff that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms
of two key variables: programme (Table 3.1) and salary band (Table 3.2). Departments have identified
critical occupations that need to be monitored. The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are
not filled.

Table 3.1 – Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2008

Programme Number of posts 
Number of posts 

filled 
Vacancy Rate % 

Number of posts filled 
additional to the 
establishment 

Programme 1 
Administration 

310 248 20 10 (3 excess) 

Programme 2 
Economic Planning and 
Budget Management 

249 229 8 16 

Programme 3 
Asset and Liability 
Management 

79 100 (27)* 2 

Programme 4 
Financial Management 
and Systems 

101 79 22 3 (3 excess) 

Programme 5 
Financial Accounting 
and Reporting 

68 61 10 2 

Programme 6  
Economic Policy and 
international Financial 
Relations 

90 92 (2)* 18 

Total 897 809 10 51 (6 excess) 

* Although a negative vacancy rate is showing, it should be noted that this is due to additional resources appointed on contract for fixed term projects 
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DISTRIBUTION OF FILLED POSITIONS PER 
PROGRAMME
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Table 3.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2008

Salary band 
Number of 

posts 
Number of posts 

filled 
Vacancy Rate % 

Number of posts filled 
additional to the 
establishment 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 1 0 1 (1 excess) 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

52 50 4 3 (1 excess) 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

230 208 10 7 (4 excess) 

Highly skilled  supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

409 342 16 14 

Senior  management 
(Levels 13-16)  

206 208 (1)* 26 

Total 897 809 10 51 (6 excess) 

NB: Vacancy reduced by additional appointments. Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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DISTRIBUTION OF FILLED POSITIONS PER SALARY 
BAND

Highly skilled  
supervision 

(Levels 9-12), 
42%

Senior  
management 

(Levels 13-16) , 
26%

Low er skilled 
(Levels 1-2), 0%

Skilled(Levels 3-
5), 6%

Highly skilled 
production 

(Levels 6-8), 
26%

The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2008. For an indication of changes in
staffing patterns over the year under review, please refer to section 5 of this report.

4. JOB EVALUATION

The Public Service Regulations, 1999 introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal
value is remunerated equally. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may
evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on
salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. This was complemented by a deci-
sion by the Minister of Public Service and Administration that all SMS jobs be evaluated before 31
December 2002.

Note: Critical skills occupations for the National Treasury have not been finalised. However,
the following areas are being considered: Economists, Supply Chain Consultants,
Chartered Accountants and Tax Specialists
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The following table (Table 4.1) summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year
under review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgrad-
ed.

Table 4.1 – Job evaluation, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded 

Salary band 
Number 
of posts 

Number of 
Jobs 

Evaluated 

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 

bands 
Number 

% of  
posts 

evaluated 
Number 

% of  
posts 

evaluated 

Lower  skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

52 1 1.9 1 1.8 0 0.0 

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6-8) 

230 3 1.3 3 5.5 0 0.0 

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

409 38 9.3 38 69.1 0 0.0 

Senior Management 
Service B and A 

148 11 7.4 11 20.0 0 0.0 

Senior Management 
Service B and B 

48 2 4.2 2 3.6 0 0.0 

Senior Management 
Service B and C 

9 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 

Senior Management 
Service B and D 

1 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 

Total 897 55 6.1 55 100.0 0 0.0 
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The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were
upgraded due to their posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of
posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the
posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 4.2 – Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to
their posts being upgraded, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total 

Female 5 3 1 2 11 
Male 3 0 3 0 6
Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 8 3 4 2 17 

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical Report

National Treasury Part3:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 3 9/19/2008 12:22 PM Page 207



Occupation 
Number of 
employees 

Job evaluation 
level 

Remuneration level 
Reason for 
deviation 

Chief Director 5 14 15 Retention 

Director 23 13 14 Retention 

Deputy Director 12 11 & 12 12 & 13 Retention 

Assistant Director  6 9 10 Retention 

Office Assistant 2 3 & 4 4 & 5 Retention 

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in 2007/08 48 
Percentage of total employment 5.9 
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The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade
determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job
evaluation, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Table 4.4 summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 4.4 – Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade detemined
by job evaluation, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total 
Female 6 2 1 8 17 
Male 11 3 2 15 31
Total 17 5 3 23 48 

5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.

Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The follow-
ing table provides a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 5.1).

Table 5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008

Salary Band 

Number of 
employees per 

band as at  
31 March 2007 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department 

Terminations and 
transfers out of 
the department 

Turnover rate 
%

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 0 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 48 8 5 10 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 206 64 37 18 

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

319 73 61 19 

Senior Management Service B and A  134 24 17 13 

Senior Management Service B and B  47 7 10 21 

Senior Management Service B and C 9 0 2 22 

Senior Management Service B and D 1 0 0 0 

Total 765 176 132 17 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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Table 5.2 identifies the major reasons why staff are leaving the department.

Table 5.2 – Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type Number % of total 
Death 5 4

Resignation 81 61 

Expiry of contract 11 8

Dismissal – operational changes 0 0 

Dismissal – misconduct 0 0 

Dismissal – inefficiency  0 0 

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0 

Retirement 2 2

Severance Package 1 1

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 32 24 

Total 132 100 
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 16 
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Table 5.3 – Promotions by salary band

Salary Band 
Employees         

31 March 2007 

Promotions to 
another salary 

level 

Salary bands promotions as 
a % of employees by salary 

level 
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 48 2 4 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 206 17 8 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 319 54 17 

Senior management (Levels13-16) 191 23 12 

Total 765 96 13 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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PROMOTIONS TO ANOTHER SALARY LEVEL AS A 
PERCENTAGE (%) OF TOTAL (96)

Highly skilled 
supervision (Levels9-

12), 56%

Senior management 
(Levels13-16), 24%

Lower skilled (Levels 1-
2), 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5), 2%
Highly skilled 

production (Levels 6-8), 
18%

6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act,
55 of 1998.

Table 6.1 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in
each of the following occupational categories as at 31 March 2008

Male Female Total Occupational categories 
(SASCO) African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White  
Legislators, senior officials and 
managers 48 15 15 36 22 6 8 27 177 
Professionals 88 14 12 44 80 5 11 53 307 
Technicians and associate 
professionals 12 3 2 9 30 4 6 10 76 
Clerks  35 2 2 3 94 14 8 40 198 
Service and sales workers 9 3 0 0 11 1 0 0 24 
Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

Craft and related trades 
workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Elementary occupations 6 2 0 0 12 0 0 0 20 
Total 205 39 31 92 249 30 33 130 809 

RACE DISTRIBUTION
2006/2007

White, 30%

Black, 70%

RACE DISTRIBUTION
2007/2008

Black, 73%

White, 27%
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Table 6.2 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in
each of the following occupational bands as at 31 March 2008

Male Female  
Occupational Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 5 0 3 4 0 0 0 0 12 

Senior Management 47 19 14 35 31 7 9 34 196 
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 

93 15 12 46 92 10 15 59 342 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents 

37 2 2 6 104 12 9 36 208 

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making 

23 3 0 1 21 1 0 1 50 

Unskilled and defined decision 
making 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Total 205 39 31 92 249 30 33 130 809 
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GENDER DISTRIBUTION
2006/2007

Female, 55%

Male, 45%

GENDER DISTRIBUTION
2007/2008

Male, 45%

Female, 55%

Male Female  
Occupational Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 7 2 2 1 14 1 1 3 31 
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 

29 4 1 6 21 3 4 5 73 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

22 0 0 0 37 1 3 1 64 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

5 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 8

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 63 6 3 7 75 5 8 9 176 
Employees with 
disabilities 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 6.3 – Recruitment for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008
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RECRUITMENT PROFILE

Unski l led and def ined 
decision making, 0%

Pr of essional l y qual i f ied 
and exper ienced 

special ists and mid-
management, 41%

Senior  Management, 18%

Top Management, 0%

Semi-ski l led and 
discr etionar y decision 

making, 5%

Ski l led technical  and 
academical l y qual i f ied 

wor ker s, junior  
management, super visor s, 

f or eman and 
super intendents, 36%

Male Female  
Occupational Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 5 1 1 3 6 1 1 5 23
Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

12 3 3 3 19 3 4 7 54 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

3 1 0 0 10 2 1 0 17 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 22 5 4 6 35 6 6 12 96 

Table 6.4 – Promotions for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

PROMOTIONS PROFILE
Unskilled and 

def ined decision 
making, 0%

Professionally 
qualif ied and 
experienced 

specialists and mid-
management, 56%

Senior 
M anagement, 24%

Top M anagement, 
0%

Semi-skilled and 
discret ionary 

decision making, 
2%

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualif ied workers, 
junior management, 

supervisors, 
foreman and 

superintendents, 
18%
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Table 6.5 – Terminations for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008
Male Female  Occupational Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2
Senior Management 6 2 2 5 7 0 2 3 27 
Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

18 0 2 3 23 2 5 8 61 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

15 2 0 0 18 0 1 1 37 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 5

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 42 4 4 9 50 3 8 12 132 
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TERMINATION OF SERVICES PROFILE
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Table 6.6 – Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Male Female  
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

Disciplinary action 5 2 1 1 7 1 1 2 20 
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Table 6.7 – Skills development for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Male Female  
Occupational categories 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

28 4 6 10 37 5 6 13 109 

Professionals 25 3 3 2 37 7 10 7 94

Technicians and 
associate professionals 

8 3 1 18 34 1 4 17 86 

Clerks  23 4 1 2 70 3 4 9 116 

Service and sales workers 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 3 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 13 

Total 87 14 11 32 178 26 24 46 418 

Employees with 
disabilities 

1 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 5
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7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS
To encourage good performance, the department granted the following performance rewards during the
year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 7.1),
salary bands (table 7.2) and critical occupations (Table 7.3).

Table 7.1 – Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008

Beneficiary Profile Cost 
Number of 

beneficiaries 
Total number of 

employees in group 
% of total within 

group 
Cost 

(R’000) 
Average cost 
per employee 

African 316 371 85 7,608 24 
Male 150 167 90 4,384 29 

Female 166 204 81 3,224 19 

Asian 43 53 81 1,726 40 
Male 21 30 70 1,024 49 

Female 22 23 96 702 32 

Coloured 46 59 78 1,772 39 
Male 21 32 66 990 47 

Female 25 27 93 782 31 

White 194 227 85 7,374 38 
Male 75 92 82 3,733 50 

Female 119 135 88 3,641 31 

Total 599 710 84 18,480 31 

Employees with disabilities 4 5 80 53 13 
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Table 7.2 – Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below senior
management service, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile Cost 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within salary 

bands 

Total Cost 
(R’000) 

Average 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 1 0 0 0 0

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

50 53 94.3 384 8 0.15 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

128 197 64.9 1,618 24 0.6 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

242 326 74.5 6,279 51 2.5 

Total 420 577 77.9 8,281 20 3.25 
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Table 7.3 – Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for
senior management service

Salary Band Beneficiary Profile 
Total Cost 

(R’000) 

Average 
cost per 

employee 

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within band 

 

Band A 123 141 87 6,398 52 2.35% 

Band B 44 49 90 2,728 62 1.00% 

Band C 11 11 100 937 85 0.34% 

Band D 1 1 100 136 136 0.05% 

Total 179 202 89 10,199 57 3.74% 

NB: Please note that the Head of Department received the 2004/2005 and 2005/2006 performance bonuses during this financial year 

8. LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2007 TO 31 DECEMBER 2007

The Public Service Commission identified the need to carefully monitor sick leave within the public
service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 8.1) and disability
leave (Table 8.2). In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.
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Table 8.1 – Sick leave, 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007

Salary Band Total days 
% days with 

medical 
certification 

Number of 
Employees 
using sick 

leave 

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

12 0 1 0.2 12 2 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

217 0 33 5.4 7 53 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

1190.5 0 170 27.9 7 494 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

1621 0 270 44.3 6 1602 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16) 

704.5 0 136 22.3 5 1477 

Total 
3745 0 610 100.0 6 3,628 
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Salary Band 
Total days 

taken 

% days with 
medical 

certification 

Number of 
Employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

6 100 1 25 6 2 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

46 100 2 50 23 29 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16) 

3 100 1 25 0 6 

Total 55 100 4 100 14 37 

Table 8.2 – Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2007 to
31 December 2007

Table 8.3 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions
in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave
being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 8.3 – Annual Leave, 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007

Salary Bands Total days taken 
Average per 

employee 
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 20.00 20 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1,139.00 23 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 3,810.32 18 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 6,927.76 20 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 4,488.84 22 

Total 16,385.92 20 
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PROFILE OF ANNUAL LEAVE TAKEN
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23%

Table 8.4 – Capped leave, 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007

Salary Bands 
Total days of 

capped leave taken 

Average number of 
days taken per 

employee 

Average capped 
leave per employee 
as at 31 December 

2007
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1 1 34 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 34 6 19 

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 47 2 37 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 63 6 68 

Total 145 4 41 

REASON 
Total Amount 

(R’000) 
Number of 
Employees 

Average payment 
per employee 

Leave payout for 2007/08 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle 

0 0 0

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 
2007/08 

382 7 97 

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2007/08 

846 97 9 

Total 1528 104 106 

Table 8.5 – Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008
The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

9 HIV AND AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Table 9.1 – Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HIV and related diseases (if any)  

Key steps taken to reduce the risk  

None N/A 
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Table 9.2 – Details of health promotion and HIV and AIDS programmes

Question Yes No Details, if yes 

1.  Has the department designated a member of the SMS to 
implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 
1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 
her/his name and position 

x Chief Director: Performance and Development. 

2.  Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it 
designated specific staff members to promote the health 
and well being of your employees? If so, indicate the 
number of employees who are involved in this task and the 
annual budget that is available for this purpose   

x 1 Internal Human Resources Specialist: Employee 
Wellness Programme (EWP), supported by an 
external Employee Wellness service provider 
(ICAS) 

3.  Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance 
or Health Promotion Programme for employees? If so, 
indicate the key elements/services of this Programme  

x Confidential Counselling 
Assess and refer employees for interventions 
including:  financial and legal advice, 
relationships, family matters, substance 
abuse, work stress, depression, trauma and 
other health issues 
Provide training and awareness programmes 
Conduct needs assessment and Knowledge, 
Attitude, Behaviour and Practical (KABP) 
study 
EWP Marketing 
Implement EWP and HIV and Aids strategies 

4.  Has the department established a committee/s as 
contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public 
Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the 
names of the members of the committee/s and the 
stakeholder/s that they represent   

x Composed 10 internal members: 
Sheridan Pillay (DG’s office) 
Thabile Khame (Specialist Function) 
Dalu Majeke (Corporate Services) 
Georgina Chauke (Corporate Services) 
Marius Klue (OAG) 
Betty Malope (Corporate Services) 
Andrew Mohlala (Intergovernmental relations) 
Nomkhosi Zulu (Public Finance) 
Betty Malope (Corporate Services) 
Innocentia Machaba (Specialist Functions) 

5.  Has the department reviewed its employment policies and 
practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, 
list the employment policies/practices so reviewed   

x The department’s HIV and AIDS policy gives a 
solid platform for ensuring non-discriminatory 
practices against HIV positive employees 

6.  Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-
positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive 
from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 
measures  

x The HIV and AIDS policy emphasises 
confidentiality and the names of all employees 
tested are kept confidentially by an external 
Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT) service 
provider 

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo 
Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results 
that you have you achieved  

x VCT was conducted in December 2007 with 123 
employees tested, and April 2008 (still awaiting 
results) 

8.  Has the department developed measures/indicators to 
monitor and evaluate the impact of its health promotion 
programme? If so, list these measures/indicators 

 x  
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10 LABOUR RELATIONS

Subject Matter Date 
None

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the department.

Table 10.1 – Collective agreements, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008
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The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department
for the year under review.

Table 10.2 – Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total 

Correctional counselling 0 0 

Verbal warning 0 0 

Written warning 3 14 

Final written warning 14 67 

Suspended without pay 2 9.5 

Fine 0 0

Demotion 0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Not guilty 0 0

Case withdrawn 2 9.5 

Total 21 100 
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Table 10.3 – Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct  Number % of total 
Gross insubordination 1 5 

Unauthorised use of telephone pin code 3 15 

Incapacity 1 5

Negligence 9 45 

Negligence and insubordination 1 5 

Negligence, insubordination and absenteeism 2 10 

Absenteeism 1 5

Abuse of National Treasury property 2 10 

Total 20 100 

Table 10.4 – Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Number % of Total 
Number of grievances resolved 9 81.8 

Number of grievances not resolved 2 18.2 

Total number of grievances lodged 11 100 

Table 10.5 – Disputes lodged with councils for the period 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008

Number % of Total 
Number of disputes upheld 2 66.7 

Number of disputes dismissed 1 33.3 

Total number of disputes lodged 3 100 
NB. There is still 1 (25%) outstanding dispute which is with the Labour Court 

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical Report
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11 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Occupational 
Categories 

Gender 

Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 

2007 Learnerships 

Skills 
Programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Female 57 0 82 0 82 Legislators, senior officials 
and managers Male 116 0 167 0 167 

Female 186 0 239 0 239 
Professionals 

Male 168 0 223 0 223 

Female 0 0 4 0 4Technicians and 
associate professionals Male 0 0 6 0 6

Female 152 0 221 0 221 
Clerks  

Male 37 0 60 0 60 

Female 11 0 16 0 16 
Service and sales workers 

Male 13 0 20 0 20 

Female 0 0 0 0 0Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0Craft and related trades 
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers Male 6 0 0 0 0

Female 12 0 0 11 11 
Elementary occupations 

Male 9 0 0 3 3

Female 418 0 562 11 573 
Sub Total 

Male 349 0 476 3 479 

Total  767 0 1038 14 1052 
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Table 10.6 – Strike actions for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008p p

Total number of person working days lost 

Total cost (R’000) of working days lost N/A 

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay N/A 

Table 10.7 – Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008

Number of people suspended N/A 

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days N/A 

Average number of days suspended N/A 

Cost (R’000) of suspensions N/A 

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

Table 11.1 – Training needs identified 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008
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Table 11.2 – Training provided 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Training provided within the reporting period 

Occupational Categories Gender 

Number of 
employees as 

at 1 April 
2007 

Learnerships 

Skills 
Programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Female 57 0 61 0 61Legislators, senior officials 
and managers Male 116 0 48 0 48 

Female 186 0 61 0 61 Professionals 

Male 168 0 33 0 33

Female 0 0 56 0 56Technicians and associate 
professionals Male 0 0 30 0 30 

Female 152 0 86 0 86 Clerks  

Male 37 0 30 0 30 

Female 11 0 0 0 0Service and sales workers 

Male 13 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0Craft and related trades 
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0Plant and machine 
operators & assemblers Male 6 0 0 0 0

Female 12 0 0 10 10 Elementary occupations 

Male 9 0 0 3 3

Female 418 0 264 10 274 Sub Total 
Male 349 0 141 3 144 

Total  767 0 405 13 418 
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12 INJURY ON DUTY

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total 

Required basic medical attention only 0 0 

Temporary Total Disablement 1 100 

Permanent Disablement 0 0 

Fatal 0 0

Total 1 100 

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 12.1 – Injury on duty, 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical Report
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AANNNNEEXXUURREESS

Annexure 1: Abbreviations

ACCC Anti-Corruption Coordinating Committee
ADB African Development Bank
ADF African Development Fund
AFIS Automated Fingerprint Identification System
APRM African Peer Review Mechanism
ASB Accounting Standards Board
AU African Union
BAS Basic Accounting System
BIS Bank for International Settlements
CFTC Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
CGE Computable General Equilibrium
CISNA Securities and Non-banking Financial Authorities
CMU Contract Management Unit
CMA Common Monetary Area
CPD Corporation for Public Deposits
DBSA Development Bank of Southern Africa
DCIS Development Corporation Information System
DOC Department of Communications
DPE Department of Public Enterprises
DME Department of Minerals and Energy
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
ED Exposure Drafts
EU European Union
FATF Financial Action Task Force
FFC Financial and Fiscal Commission
FIC Financial Intelligence Centre
FMS Financial Management System
FOSAD Forum of SA Directors-General
FSB Financial Services Board
G20 Group of Twenty Countries
G24 Group of Twenty-Four Countries
GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices
GCC Guarantee Certification Committee
GCIS Government Communications and Information System
GDS Growth and Development Summit
GEPF Government Employee Pension Fund
GFECRA Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account

National Treasury Part3:Treasury Annual Rep 07 Part 3 9/19/2008 12:23 PM Page 222



Annual Report 2007/08 223>>

Annexures

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individual
HIPC Highly Indebted Poor Countries
HSRC Human Sciences Research Council
IAS International Accounting Standards
IDC International Development Cooperation
IFAC International Federation of Accountants
IFMS Integrated Financial Management Systems
IJS Integrated Justice Sector
IMF International Monetary Fund
IMFC International Monetary and Financial Committee
IOSCO International Organisation of Securities Commissions
IPFA Institute for Public Finance and Auditing
IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards
ISDA International Swaps and Derivatives Association
LRAD Land Reform for Agricultural Development
MFMA Municipal Financial Management Act
MFMTAP Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project
MOU Memorandum of Understanding
MSP Master Systems Plan
MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
NCOP National Council of Provinces
NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
NEPAD New Partnership for Africa's Development
NERSA National Energy Regulator of South Africa
NERT National Energy Response Team
NIA National Intelligence Agency
NOFP Net Open Forward Position
NPA National Ports Authority
OAG Office of the Auditor-General
PIC Public Investment Corporation
PFAI Provident Fund for Associated Institutions
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PPP Public Private Partnerships
PPPFA Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme
REDS Regional Electricity Distributors
RISDP Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan
RMF Risk Management Framework
SACU Southern African Customs Union
SADC Southern African Development Community
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SAFCOL SA Forestry Company Limited
SANReN South African Research Network
SAPS South African Police Services
SAPO South African Post Office
SARB South African Reserve Bank
SARS South African Revenue Services
SASRIA South African Special Risks Insurance Association
SCM Supply Chain Management
SCOA Standard Chart of Accounts
SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
SITA State Information Technology Agency
SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts 
SMMEs Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises
SOEs State-owned Enterprises
STRIPS Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities
WTO World Trade Organisation
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Annexures

Annexure 2: Institutions associated with the National Treasury

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public institutions. It has
operational and institutional independence and, in some instances, constitutionally
guaranteed autonomy. It produces its own annual reports.

Accounting Standards Board
Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
Coin Liabilities
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
Corporation for Public Deposits
Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)
Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)
Financial and Fiscal Commission
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 of 1997)
Financial Services Board
Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)
The following either report to or are linked to it:
Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Ombud
Financial Markets Advisory Board
Pension Fund
Pension Funds Adjudicator
Financial Intelligence Centre 
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)
Independent Development Trust
Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)
Public Accounts and Auditors Board
Public Investment Corporation
Public Investment Corporation Act, 2004 (23 of 2004)
Registrar of Banks
Reports to SA Reserve Bank
SA Banknote Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
SA Mint Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
South African Reserve Bank
SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)
South African Revenue Service
SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)
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South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)
Special Pensions Board
Special Pensions Advisory Board
State Tender Board
Statistical Council
Statistics Act (66 of 1976)
Tax Advisory Committee
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